
High Peak Borough Council

CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Monday, 28 September 2020

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: Virtual Meeting

You can view the 
agenda online by using 
a smart phone camera 
and scanning the code 
below:

18 September 2020

PART 1
1. Apologies for Absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
2. Other Interests

3. Any matters referred to the Committee under the call-in procedure 

4. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6)

5. First Quarter Performance, Procurement and Finanical Reivew 2020/21 (Pages 7 - 
56)

6. Medium Term Financial Plan (Pages 57 - 84)

7. Revised Performance Framework (Pages 85 - 94)

8. Current Planning System Consultation (Pages 95 - 104)

9.      Vision Derbyshire - verbal update 
10.   Select Committee Work Programme (Pages 105 - 110)

11.   Any questions referred to the Executive Member (Member Services to be advised of     
any questions at least 4 days prior to the meeting) 

MARK TRILLO
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER

Membership of Corporate Select Committee
Councillor T Ashton (Chair) Councillor M Stone (Vice-Chair)
Councillor J Collins Councillor O Cross
Councillor S Flower Councillor L Grooby

Public Document Pack



Councillor D Kerr Councillor D Lomax
Councillor R McKeown Councillor G Oakley
Councillor E Siddall Councillor E Thrane



High Peak Borough Council

CORPORATE SELECT COMMITTEE

Meeting: Monday, 13 July 2020 at 6.30 pm (Virtual Meeting)

Present: Councillor T Ashton (Chair) 

Councillors J Collins, O Cross (arrived at 6.48 p.m.), S Flower, L Grooby, 
D Lomax, R McKeown, G Oakley, E Siddall and E Thrane

Councillors Barrow, A McKeown and Todd were also in attendance.

20/55 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 4)

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 February 2020 be approved as 
a correct record.

20/56 FOURTH QUARTER FINANCIAL PROCUREMENT AND PERFORMANCE 
REVIEW
(Agenda Item 6)

The Committee considered the council’s overall performance and financial 
position for the period ended 31st March (“Fourth Quarter”).

The effect of Covid 19 on the surplus reported was queried, to which the 
Executive Councillor advised that £200,000 was being moved from reserves 
to mitigate the potential costs and a recovery plan was being developed.

A written response would be circulated in respect of a query regarding 
whether the works to Whaley Bridge War Memorial would be completed in 
time for November.

It was commented that there was a need to monitor the S106 processes to 
ensure value for money and that no monies were being lost.  

Regarding the underspend on disabled adaptations, it was queried whether 
the funding could be used to mend and maintain equipment that has already 
been installed.

The view was expressed that some of the information around AES in the 
report was overcomplicated which would be reviewed going forward.

RESOLVED:

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Corporate Select Committee
Monday, 13 July 2020

2

1. That the Fourth Quarter 2019/20 financial, procurement and 
performance position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and 
summarised at paragraph 3.3 of the covering report, be noted;

2, That the Executive be recommended to approve the allocation in the 
surplus on the General Fund Revenue Account to reserves as 
explained in Appendix A (paragraph 2.10)

3. That the Executive be recommended to approve the proposal to carry 
forward unspent revenue budget as described in Appendix A 
(paragraph 2.13)

4. That the Executive be recommended to approve the proposals to 
carry forward unspent capital budget as set out in Appendix A 
(paragraph 6.5 and 7.4)

20/57 COVID-19 PANDEMIC - RECOVERY - REINSTATING SERVICES, 
FINANCIAL RECOVERY AND POSITIVE LEGACY
(Agenda Item 5)

The Committee considered a report which identified the impact of COVID-19 
on service delivery and set out the plans that are being put in place for 
recovery.  

Members conveyed their thanks to staff for their contribution during this 
period.

The view was expressed that there was a need for members to be able to 
take an holistic response to meeting the challenges arising from COVID-19, 
and it was suggested that a joint working group be established to enable 
committees to work together on this issue.  The Leader commented that this 
would be considered in due course.  Preparations in anticipation of a second 
wave were also queried.

The possibility of road closures in town centres to help traders was raised, 
and members were advised that discussions were on-going.

Issues around the public toilets in Hope Valley were raised, to which the 
Leader advised that discussions were on-going with DCC to ensure that the 
facilities were safe to use and clean.  It was noted that the provision to 
toilets was an optional service and although important, costs still need to be 
considered.

RESOLVED:

1. That the details of the Council’s recovery of the COVID-19 pandemic 
as outlined in the report be noted; and 

2. That the proposed recovery plans outlined in the report be noted.

Page 4



Corporate Select Committee
Monday, 13 July 2020

3

20/58 FINANCIAL PLANNING PROCESS
(Agenda Item 7)

The Committee considered a report which presented the proposed financial 
planning process in order the review the longer term impact the Coronavirus 
pandemic has had on the financial position of the authority.

In response to concerns expressed regarding the use of reserves, members 
were assured that the position would be monitored and that regular 
meetings were being held with other Derbyshire authorities.

RESOLVED:

1. That the committee with to express their thanks to all staff involved in 
the response to COVID-19;

2. That the proposed process be noted.

20/59 SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
(Agenda Item 8)

The Select Committee Work Programmes were to be developed following 
any comments from members.

It was requested that a further report around financial planning be submitted 
to Corporate Select.

It was requested that the calendar of meetings be circulated as soon as 
possible.

RESOLVED:

That the updated be noted.

20/60 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
(Agenda Item 10)

RESOLVED:

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during the 
consideration of the following item of business as there may be disclosure of 
exempt information as set out in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.

20/61 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 11)

RESOLVED:

That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 10 February 2020 be 
approved as a correct record.

Page 5



Corporate Select Committee
Monday, 13 July 2020

4

The meeting concluded at 

CHAIRMAN

Page 6



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Corporate Select Committee

28 September 2020

TITLE: First Quarter Performance, Procurement and 
Finanical Reivew 2020/21

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Barrow - Executive Councillor for 
Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Keith Pointon – Interim Head of Finance  
Vanessa Higgins – Information Business 
Partner

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-specific

Appendices Attached
 Appendix A (2020/21 – First Quarter (Financial Report)
 Appendix B (2020/21 – First Quarter (Procurement Report) 
 Appendix C (2020/21 – First Quarter (Performance Report)

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall 
performance and financial position for the period ended 30th June (“First 
Quarter 2020/21”)

2. Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that the Corporate Select Committee: 

 Note the First Quarter 2020/21 financial, procurement and performance 
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this 
covering report; and

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report summarises the Council’s performance and financial position after 
considering service activity up to the end of the First Quarter (i.e. 30th June 
2020). 

3.2 Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B 
(Procurement) & Appendix C (Performance).

3.3 The position can be summarised as follows:

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Subject Headline Reference
Finance The Finance headlines for the First Quarter are:

Performance against Budget
 At the First Quarter stage the General Fund projected outturn for 

2020/21 is an overspend of £459,580.  

Efficiency Programme
 At Quarter One no savings have been taken against the 2020/21 

revised efficiency target of £257,000 (General Fund).  

Housing Revenue Account
 The Housing Revenue Account is predicted to be in surplus 

(against budget) by £749,030 at the Quarter One stage.

Capital Programme
 The General Fund Capital Programme budget for 2020/21 as 

revised is £5.05 million.  The projected outturn is £3.19 million, 
representing an underspend of £1.86 million – mostly in respect 
of programme slippage due to Covid19

 The HRA Programme for 2020/21 as revised is £5.4 million.  The 
projected outturn is £4.6 million which represents a £0.8 million 
underspend - mostly in respect of programme slippage.

Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 30 June 2020 totalled £27.4 million.
 Council borrowing at 30 June 2020 totalled £66.8 million.
 The Council’s net interest costs are forecast to be as budgeted 

for the HRA and £61,280 over for the general fund.

Revenue Collection
 28.47% of Council Tax was collected by 30 June 2020, compared 

to 29.64% for the same period last year.
 22.51% of Business Rates was collected by 30 June 2020 

compared with 30.01% for the same period last year.
 At the end of Quarter Oner the value of sundry debt over 60 days 

old was £270,240 which compares to £178,520 at 30 June 2020

Appendix A

Procurement The Procurement headlines for the First Quarter are:
 27 procurement activities were completed 
 The Procurement forward plan includes 66 procurement activities for 

completion/start in 2020/21 (either HPBC only or joint)
 At the 30 June 2020, 97% of procurement activity undertaken was on 

the forward plan and the Council paid 97% of its invoices within 30 
days

Appendix B 

Performance The Performance headlines for the First Quarter are:
 59% of the key performance indicators on track, with 49% better 

than target
 The Council received 8 complaints and 44 compliments in the First 

Quarter.
 15 projects on track, 18 not yet commenced, 1 completed.

Appendix C

Page 8



4.      How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 
effective management of performance and financial resources, which is the 
subject of this report.

5.      Options and Analysis

5.1 Detailed Analysis is contained within the appendices

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
None

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality 
and Diversity policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report.

6.5 Legal
None

6.6 Climate Change
None

6.7 Consultation
None

6.8      Risk Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are 
identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A.

CLAIRE HAZELDENE
Acting Executive Director (Finance and Customer Services)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Appendices A-C
Keith Pointon – Interim Head of Finance 
01538 395400 Ext. 4193
Vanessa Higgins – Information Business Prtner
01538 395400 Ext. 4195

6.4

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1

APPENDIX A

2020/21

First Quarter 
Financial
Review

Page 11



2

1. Background and Introduction 

1.1. In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and recommended 
good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to members. This is the 
first such report for 2020/21.

1.2. The report summarises overall financial performance for 2020/21 with particular 
emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. Specific 
considerations are as follows:

 General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary 
performance on the General Account by looking at variations in income and 
expenditure and the funding received by the Council. 

 Alliance Environmental Services (Section 3) – highlights the performance of 
the Council’s Joint Venture Company providing Waste and Fleet services.

 Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 4) – considers 
progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings forecast. 

 Housing Revenue Account (Section 5) – highlights the budgetary position in 
respect of the operation of the Council’s housing stock.

 General Fund Capital Programme (Section 6) – provides an update to 
Members on progress against the Council’s General Fund capital plans.

 HRA Capital Programme (Section 7) – provides an update to Members on 
progress against the Council’s HRA capital plans.

 Treasury Management (Section 8) – sets out the key statistics in terms of 
investments and borrowings.

 Revenue Collection (Section 9) – considers progress-to-date in collecting the 
Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts.

Page 12



3

2. General Fund Revenue Account

2.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the General 
Fund Revenue Account against budget by looking at variations in income and 
expenditure and funding received by the Council.

Service (with staff*) 2020/21 
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2020/21

Variance

Contributi
on to / 

(Use of) 
Earmarke

d 
Reserves

Net 
Variance

 £ £ £ £ £
Alliance Leadership Team 58,290 49,810 (8,480) - (8,480)
Audit 10,240 5,240 (5,000) - (5,000)
ICT 614,210 566,980 (47,230) - (47,230)
Human Resources 69,480 51,480 (18,000) - (18,000)
Member Services 195,220 159,220 (36,000) - (36,000)
Property Services 146,780 615,920 469,140 (5,000) 464,140
Benefits (178,470) (158,470) 20,000 (14,700) 5,300
Planning Applications (370,830) (349,360) 61,320 (800) 60,520
Building Control 38,270 17,570 (20,700) - (20,700)
Customer Services 144,390 96,350 (48,040) - (48,040)
Legal Services 30,510 30,510 - - -
Electoral Services 59,470 41,770 (17,700) - (17,700)
Licensing and Land Charges (317,480) (234,060) 83,420 - 83,420
Regeneration 209,630 346,180 96,700 (64,000) 32,700
Communities and Cultural 293,030 292,550 (480) - (480)
Housing Strategy** 67,930 44,930 (23,000) - (23,000)
Transformation 21,250 13,600 (7,650) - (7,650)
Community Safety and Enforcement 118,080 107,810 (10,270) - (10,270)
Finance Income & Procurement (174,130) 40,040 214,170 - 214,170
Corporate Finance* 5,345,490 5,682,490 337,000 - 337,000
Waste Collection 2,015,120 2,193,740 178,620 - 178,620
Street Scene 400,890 394,530 (6,360) (60) (6,420)
Leisure Services 146,770 808,500 661,730 500 662,230
Horticulture 333,100 320,300 (12,800) (780) (13,580)
Environmental Health (30,710) (35,030) (4,320) - (4,320)
  
Net Total of Services 9,246,530 11,102,600 1,856,070 - 1,771,230
  
Net Interest 1,679,940 1,741,220 61,280 61,280
 10,926,470 12,843,820 1,917,350 (84,840) 1,832,510
Funding:  
- external (10,951,820) (14,228,150) (3,276,330) 3,360,640 84,310
- reserves contribution to/(from)
     general contingency 138,290 138,290 - - -
     use of carry forward from 19/20 (24,000) (24,000) - - -
     earmarked (88,940) (84,840) 4,100 84,840 88,940
- covid 19 support (1,546,180) (1,546,180) (1,546,180)

Projected (Surplus)/Deficit - (2,901,060) (2,901,060) 3,360,640 459,580
    

* Staff budgets are currently budgeted within Corporate Finance (except for the staff budget of the Carelink service 
within Housing Strategy which for operational reasons are included within the Service).
  ** The Council’s Housing management costs are charged to the Housing Revenue Account

Page 13



4

2.2. A revenue budget of £10,902,470 was set for 2020/21.  In accordance with 
Financial Procedure Rules, the roll forward of £24,000 in unused budgets from 
2019/20 has been authorised.

Corporate Finance (£6,000): relating to completion of risk management work 
around the safeguarding of the Buxton Spring Water source. 

Assets (£18,000): in respect of works to Whaley Bridge War Memorial.

This brings the 2020/21 budget to £10,926,470.

2.3. The table above shows how this budget has been allocated to services.

2.4. The Q1 projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for 2020/21 is 
£11,386,050.  This represents a projected deficit for the year of £459,580. 

2.5. No service areas with a projected significant underspend (>£50,000):

2.6. There are seven service areas with projected significant overspends (>£50,000).

 Property (£464,140 overspend); Covid-19 has impacted this service 
significantly in two areas.  Car parking where a £406,000 reduction in income 
is forecast (based on latest actual income received up to September and 
projecting forward) and Public Conveniences with additional cleaning costs 
resulting in a £19,000 overspend.  The protracted negotiation of a replacement 
contract for property maintenance is further adding to budgetary pressures.  

 Planning (£60,520 overspend); underspends across a number of budget 
heads are partially offsetting a predicted £90,000 shortfall in income from 
planning applications. 

 Licensing and Land Charges (£83,420 overspend); Covid-19 has reduced 
demand for both land searches and activity licensing adding a further £60,000 
to an underlying £20,000 shortfall in anticipated income based on historic 
demand.

 Finance Income and Procurement (£214,170 overspend); Covid-19 has 
significantly impacted the Recovery service with income generated from 
summons activity predicted to be some £165,000 below original expectations. 
Further budget pressure in the region of £60,000 is predicted in Revenues 
from the level of spending on external services to support billing processes.  
This has been exacerbated to a degree by the heavy involvement of staff in 
administering the payment of Covid 19 business grants – which Government 
funding has contributed towards.

Page 14



5

 Corporate Finance (£327,000 overspend); Covid-19 has significantly 
impacted the level of savings achievable in the current year Efficiency 
Programme, especially those savings premised on growing fees and charges,  
and realising additional income streams. The assumption at this stage is that 
none of these savings will be achieved.  There is also heightened risk 
surrounding the savings taken in 2019/20 arising out of the council’s Leisure 
Management contract. The combined impact of these and other costs 
associated with delivering the Efficiency Programme is estimated to be in the 
region of £320,000. This situation will be kept under review over the coming 
months. An additional, if indirect, Covid-19 impact is a predicted £100,000 
shortfall in income from the Borough’s bottled water franchise. These extra 
costs have been partially offset by a £103,000 in-year credit resulting from an 
over accrual of costs against the Business Rates Pool in 2019/20. 

 Waste (£178,620 overspend); Covid 19 has had both negative and positive 
effects on service performance.  Lockdown actually increased the amount of 
recycling collected giving rise to a predicted £60,000 increase in income 
generated.  This however was more than offset by some £187,000 in 
additional staff and operating costs necessitated by requirements for social 
distancing and hygiene measures.  The income from trade waste contracts, 
reflecting the pandemic’s suppression of demand, is predicted to fall £44,000 
short of budget.

 Leisure (£662,230 overspend); The pandemic has seen the closure and 
curtailment of leisure facilities and activities significantly impacting the councils 
leisure contractor. At present subject to the success of the recovery phase, the 
additional cost consequence to the Borough is initially anticipated in the region 
of £660,000.

2.7. The £61,280 overspend on net interest costs is detailed in section 8.

2.8. The level of funding anticipated for the year is currently forecast £4,818,410 above 
that budgeted due to the following:

Business Rates (£3,276,330):

 The Council expects to receive £3,360,640 in additional S31 grants in the 
year following the announcement and award of Extended Retail Relief of 
100% (33% was forecast in the budget based on the best knowledge at the 
time); and Nursery Discount (which was not anticipated in the budget). Both 
of these increases to relief were announced by the government in response 
to the Covid-19 situation. Accounting practice dictates that these grants are 
treated as general fund revenue in the year. However, the extended reliefs 
impact the Collection Fund by increasing the deficit in the year, which will 
need to be distributed in future years, therefore this additional funding 
needs to be earmarked to accommodate this and cannot be used to 
support other services.

Page 15



6

 This increase in Business Rates Funding is forecast to be offset in part by 
an increase in net levy payable on growth to the Derbyshire Business 
Rates Pool of £84,310 compared to the budgeted amount. After taking into 
account the additional reliefs awarded, the remaining Business Rates 
income forecast for the end of the year is improved compared to budget 
setting due to smaller than anticipated amount to be provided for future 
appeals against rateable values. This is calculated on a percentage basis 
of Business Rates income therefore the resulting provision required is 
smaller due to additional reliefs awarded during the year. As a result the 
growth calculation is improved and a greater is levy payable.

Use of Reserves £4,100:

At this time a £4,100 reduced net movement out of earmarked reserves is 
predicted.

 Covid 19 funding (£1,546,180)

In response to the financial strain placed on local authorities by the pandemic the 
Government is providing financial support in the form of grants towards 
exceptional costs and compensation for loss of income.  It is anticipated that this 
support will amount to £1,546,180.

Exceptional Costs Support: (£1,266,350)

 General Support (£1,086,350 funding):
The Council has received these monies to support its general activities 
as impacted by the pandemic. 

 Discretionary Grants Administration (£170,000 funding):
This additional grant relates to the costs incurred administering the 
allocation of discretionary grants to Covid impacted businesses in the 
District.

Compensation for loss of income: (£279,830)

 Loss of Income (£279,830 funding):
Councils have been promised the facility to claim for up to 75% of net 
losses against budget for income streams that satisfy set criteria.  There 
is debate as to how the criteria will be interpreted and to date no claims 
have been submitted.  The authority, based on a prudent interpretation 
of the guidance available, anticipates £281,740 could be received.

Page 16



7

3. Alliance Environmental Services

3.1. Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) is a company created with a vision to 
deliver waste, street cleansing and grounds maintenance services in the High 
Peak and Staffordshire Moorlands areas. The company has three shareholders: 
High Peak Borough Council, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council and Ansa, 
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East Council. This section of the 
report considers the financial performance of the company and contribution to the 
Council’s Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2020/21.

3.2. Phase 1 of the transfer of services commenced on 7th August 2017 to deliver 
High Peak Borough Council Waste services. This followed the end of the 
previous contract with Veolia Environmental Services; Phase 2 began on 1st July 
2018 to deliver waste services to Staffordshire Moorlands District Council and 
fleet management services to the Alliance as a whole; and Phase 3 began on 1st 
April 2020 to deliver street cleansing and grounds maintenance services to the 
Alliance.

Alliance Environmental Service’s financial performance & Impact on the 
Council’s Budgets

3.3. The AES business plan for all services delivered to the Council during 2020/21 
includes an anticipated operating profit of £89,477 (£85,825 general fund, £3,652 
HRA). No variance to this is included in the first quarter forecast outturn, however 
additional costs are anticipated as a result of the Covid-19 outbreak of £201,579 
(£200,830 general fund, £749 HRA). 

3.4. This table shows in more detail the forecast outturn on the AES contract included 
in the General Fund Revenue Account and HRA:

2020-21 General 
Fund HRA Total

£ £ £
AES Contract budget 4,155,714 200,802 4,356,516

Management fee 4,357,159 209,374 4,566,533
Allocation of AES efficiency (115,620) (4,920) (120,540)
Covid-19 costs 200,830 749 201,579
Total management fee payable 4,442,369 205,203 4,647,572
Allocation of Joint Operation Profit (85,825) (3,652) (89,477)
Net total 4,356,544 201,551 4,558,095
Variance to budget 200,830 749 201,579

3.5. The Council’s share of the total AES revised efficiency target for 2020/21 is 
£120,540 (£115,620 general fund, £4,920 HRA). This is repayable to the Council 
and is allocated against the management fee costs.

Page 17



8

3.6. Additional costs of £201,579 (£200,830 general fund, £749 HRA) are anticipated 
by the company as a result of the Covid-19 outbreak. These are included in the 
forecast outturn and relate to provision of cleaning products, PPE and additional 
agency costs.

3.7. Under accounting standards, AES’s financial performance is incorporated in to 
the Councils’ single entity statements as a ‘Joint Operation’ as opposed to 
separate group accounts being reported.  The profit is therefore apportioned 
between the two Councils and the respective services in line with the input of 
original budgeted resources from each department. The Council’s share of the 
forecast profit at the end of quarter 1 is £89,477 (£85,825 general fund, 
£3,652HRA) and is offset against the management fee costs.

4.       Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme

4.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2020/21.

4.2. The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2017) included 
the four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy 
targeting savings of £2.1 million.  .

4.3. The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy is premised on the need to both 
reduce expenditure and increase income. The need to grow income is now more 
of a priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing. The strategy 
has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting frontline service 
delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable the Council to 
ensure that its service spending is determined by the established priorities set out 
in Corporate Plan.

4.4. The 2020/21 budget was set in February 2020 with the assumption of £410,000 of 
savings in the year. This figure comprised £810,000 from the original strategy 
reduced by £305,000 in re-profiled savings and £95,000 income generation 
savings deferred into 2021/22.  A further £153,000 of savings were realised in 
quarter 4 of 2019/20 (after the MTFP was presented), reducing the amount to be 
achieved in 2020/21 to £257,000.  The major focus of the savings programme in 
2020/21 being on growth and income generation.

4.5. At the end of Quarter One, no savings have been taken against the 20/21 
efficiency target, largely as a result of the disruption to services caused by the 
Covid19 outbreak.  

4.6. The current situation, regarding the on-going effect of the Covid-19 pandemic, 
places into doubt some of the savings taken out of the budget during 2019/20; 
particularly those relating to the Leisure Services contract. There is also a 
significant risk that the current year savings will not be achieved, particularly those 
relating to growing fees and charges and income generation. At this stage it is 
assumed that no savings will be achieved in these areas during the year. This will 
continue to be monitored over the next few months as the situation develops.

Page 18



9

4.7. The Authority carries a longstanding reserve earmarked to support the Efficiency 
Strategy which can be drawn on to offset one-off costs of delivering the efficiency 
programme, such as redundancy costs. The reserve currently stands at £200,000. 
It has not been necessary to draw on this reserve in previous years so it remains 
intact to underwrite performance against future savings targets in the Efficiency 
Programme.

5.       Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

5.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 
Housing Revenue Account and highlights the budgetary position in respect of the 
operation of the Council’s housing stock. 

5.2. The 2020/21 Housing Revenue Account budget was originally set to produce a 
deficit of £814,870 supported by reserves. The Chief Financial Officer has, in 
accordance with Financial Procedure Rules, authorised the roll forward of 
£120,000 in unused budgets from 2019/20 to facilitate completion of capital 
component works (bathrooms; kitchens; electrical works and wet rooms) halted 
during the Covid 19 pandemic lockdown period in March 20.This brought the 
2020/21 budget to a deficit of £934,870.

5.3. Provisional outturn expenditure on the Housing Revenue Account at the first 
quarter stage is £15,279,997 with estimated income of £15,094,155. This 
represents a deficit for the year of £185,842 (i.e. £749,028 below budget – 
therefore less reserves are required to fund HRA activities in year).

Housing Revenue Account

2020-21 
Approved 

Budget
Q1 

Changes
2020-21 
Revised 
Budget

2020-21 
Expected 
Outturn

Variance

£ £ £ £ £
INCOME    
Dwellings Rents (14,370,910) - (14,370,910) (14,356,420) 14,490
Non - Dwelling Rents Etc (624,440) - (624,440) (737,740) (113,300)
Sub-total income (14,995,350) - (14,995,350) (15,094,160) (98,810)
 EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance 4,299,300 - 4,299,300 4,502,230 202,930
Supervision & Management 2,613,150 - 2,613,150 2,530,790 (82,360)
Rents, rates, taxes Etc. 113,030 - 113,030 113,030 -
Other Operating Expenditure 761,310 - 761,310 759,160 (2,150)
Depreciation & Impairment 2,099,030 - 2,099,030 2,099,030 -
Interest & Debt Management 2,746,340 - 2,746,340 2,742,850 (3,490)
Contribution to Capital 3,178,060 120,000 3,298,060 2,532,910 (765,150)
Sub-total expenditure 15,810,220 120,000 15,930,220 15,280,000 (650,220)
 Surplus(-)/Deficit 814,870 120,000 934,870 185,840 (749,030)
Use of Reserves (814,870) (120,000) (934,870) (185,840) 749,030
Balance - - - - -

Page 19



10

5.4. The Council has a duty, in accordance with Part VI (Section 74) of the Local   
Government and Housing Act 1989, to maintain a “Housing Revenue Account” 
(HRA).  By “ring -fencing’ the Housing Revenue Account, the Council ensures that 
the management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock is funded from 
the income generated by rents and other related sources. The Council is required 
under Part VI (Section 76) to prevent a debit balance each year on the HRA by 
setting the appropriate budget and monitoring progress against that budget 
throughout the financial year. The deficit balance predicted by the Council at this 
first quarter stage will be funded by a transfer from reserves within the Housing 
Revenue Account.

5.5. There is just one significant (>£50,000) overspend on the HRA:
 Repairs and Maintenance (£202,930) – There are a number of variances 

contributing to this overspend; the first most significant relates to the use of 
sub-contractors and agency staff (£148,000); and the second relates to the 
increased costs associated with the provision of materials (£49,000).

5.6. There are three significant (>£50,000) underspends to be noted at this stage.

 Income - Non-Dwelling Rents (£113,300) – increased income from service 
charges has been responsible for the majority of this positive variance.

 Supervision and Management (£82,360) – there are numerous small 
underspends across a large number of budget areas contributing to this 
underspend however, a large proportion of this variance (£25,000) reflects 
savings in salary costs, transport costs and general employee related 
expenditure.

.
 Contribution to Capital (£765,150) – This underspend relates to delays in 

commencement and completion of a number of Capital Schemes and is 
reflective of the changes to the capital programme detailed in Section 7 
below.

Page 20



11

6.      General Fund Capital Programme

6.1. This section of the report provides an update to Members on the Council’s 
General Fund Programme.

6.2. The table below shows a high level (service) summary of the General Fund 
Capital Programme position at 30th June 2020. Further detail on a scheme by 
scheme basis is contained in Annex A.

 
2020/21 

Approved 
Budget 

Q1 
Changes

2020/21 
Revised  
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2020/21

Expected 
Variance 
2020/21

 £ £ £ £ £
Housing     667,000             -        667,000     667,000              -   
Housing Standards     550,290             -        550,290     519,110     (31,180) 
Property Services  2,520,300      18,570   2,538,870   1,668,340    (870,530) 
ICT       87,050      48,160      135,210     118,160     (17,050) 
Fleet /CCTV 741,500     241,260 982,760 50,000    (932,760) 
Leisure Services       50,000      10,000       60,000 10,000 (50,000)
Regeneration       25,570 (12,320)       13,250       63,250       50,000 
Horticulture         9,040      90,000       99,040       90,000       (9,040) 
Total  4,650,750     395,670   5,046,420   3,185,860 (1,860,560) 
Funding:-      
External Contributions 550,290             -   550,290 519,110 (31,180)
Planning Obligations              -        43,000 43,000 43,000              -   
Capital Receipts(Land)     725,000             -   725,000              -      (725,000) 
Capital Receipts(one for one)     667,000             -   667,000 667,000              -   
Capital Receipts(vehicles)       32,500             -   32,500              -       (32,500) 
Capital Reserves              -       100,000 100,000 100,000              -   
Earmarked Reserves       50,000      14,450 64,450 64,450              -   
Borrowing  2,625,960     238,220 2,864,180 1,792,300 (1,071,880) 
Total 4,650,750 395,670 5,046,420 3,185,860 (1,860,560) 

6.3. The 2020/21 General Fund Capital Budget was approved by Members in February 
as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan £4,650,750.  An increase to the 
programme of £385,670 was then approved by Executive in July as part of the 
Provisional Outturn report and reflected the carry forward of budget from 2019/20.  
A new project budget of £10,000 has also been added during Quarter 1.   The 
overall approved budget now stands at £5,046,420.

6.4. The changes made to the capital programme since approval in February are as 
follows:- 

 (£385,670 increase) The carry forward of 2019/20 capital budget variances as 
a result of projects which were either behind schedule or had progressed 
quicker than expected in the year. 

 (£10,000 increase) Individual Executive Decision 27th June 2017 approved the 
use of Section 106 planning obligation funds towards a contribution to support 
the planned project to develop Cemetery Road Football Club and Community 
Hub in Glossop. 

Page 21



12

6.5 The General fund capital programme is currently forecast to record an overall net 
underspend position of £1,860,560 made up of the following variances;-

 (£1,910,560 underspend) - The Covid-19 out-break has contributed to 
delays in delivery of the Capital Programme. Slippage against a number of 
projects has been re-profiled in the latest Medium Term Financial Plan 
Review to reflect a more realistic timing of when capital expenditure will be 
incurred in the current circumstances. 

 (£50,000 overspend) - Buxton Crescent Hotel & Spa - Following the 
Government announcement made on Monday 23rd March 2020 that 
required people to stay at home, the Hotel was forced to put its opening 
programme on hold. Additional professional fees including project 
management costs are included in the anticipated overspend up until the 
revised opening date of October this year.

6.6 The significant change to the funding requirements are set out below;-
 Capital Receipts – £725,000  land sales originally forecast  are not now 

anticipated to be completed by the end of this financial year  
 Overall capital funding which will be applied to the 2020/21 Capital 

Programme is lower than forecast, reflecting the revised timing of capital 
spend, hence a reduced borrowing requirement of £1,071,880 against the 
revised budget.

7.      Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme

7.1. This section of the report provides an update to Members on the Council’s HRA 
capital spending.

7.2. The table below shows a high level summary of the HRA Capital Programme at 
30th June 2020. Further detail on a scheme by scheme basis is contained in 
Annex B.

Scheme
2020-21 

Approved 
Budget

Q1 Changes
2020-21 
Revised 
Budget

2020-21 
Expected 
Outturn

2020-21 
Variance

 £ £ £ £ £
Asset Management Works 4,639,590 120,000 4,759,590 4,171,940 (587,650)
Repairs Team Capital Works 295,000 - 295,000 270,000 (25,000)
Commissioning Fees 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 -
Vehicle Purchasing 242,500 - 242,500 90,000 (152,500)
Total 5,277,090 120,000 5,397,090 4,631,940 (765,150)
Funding:
Major Repairs Reserve 2,099,030 - 2,099,030 2,099,030 -
HRA Contribution 3,178,060 120,000 3,298,060 2,532,910 (765,150)

5,277,090 120,000 5,397,090 4,631,940 (765,150)
 

Page 22



13

7.3. The 2020/21 HRA Capital budget of £5,277,090 was approved by members in 
February 2020 as part of the MTFP.

7.4. The Chief Financial Officer has, in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules, 
authorised the roll forward of £120,000 in unused budgets from 2019/20 to 
facilitate completion of capital component works (bathrooms; kitchens; electrical 
works and wet rooms) halted during the Covid 19 pandemic lockdown period in 
March 20. This brings the total HRA Capital Programme to £5,397,090.

7.5. During the first quarter, £165,033 has been incurred on HRA Capital Schemes 
principally on kitchen replacements and roofing works. This is much lower than 
expected and reflects the affect of lockdown due to the coronavirus.

  
7.6. Much of the HRA spend has been re-profiled to commence either in late autumn 

or delayed until 21/22 due to continued access issues to the majority of sites.  
This has resulted in an anticipated underspend of £765,150 mainly in the following 
project areas:
 Boiler Replacement – Queens Court (£200,000) - Due to the inability to 

access all areas of this sheltered block during the early part of the year, this 
scheme has been put on hold until 21/22. 

 Radiator Replacements – Milton Court & Eccles Fold (£130,000) – The lack 
of access to individual flats during the early part of the year has resulted in 
this scheme also being put on hold until 21/22.

 Lift Replacement Scheme – (£180,000) – Problems with access have 
resulted in necessary engineer and survey reports being delayed, therefore 
some spend (approximately £20,000) is expected to take place towards the 
end of the financial year however the majority of spend will take place in 
21/22.

 Component Replacements – Kitchens; Bathrooms; Windows and Doors – 
(£170,650) – Following lockdown and the inability to access properties, spend 
in these areas has been slow.  Although there may be some capacity to 
increase delivery of these in the coming months, it is expected that there will 
be some slippage into 21/22. 

 Vehicle Replacement programme – (£152,500) – Procurement for the 
replacement of existing repairs vehicles is due to commence in September, 
thereby delaying anticipated fleet costs of £242,500 until early 21/22. 
Offsetting this, there is anticipated spend to provide four additional new 
vehicles for an electrician and estate caretaker posts.

7.7. Following the results of recent Health and Safety Inspections, it has become 
necessary to enhance existing fire safety alarm systems within a number of 
sheltered accommodation blocks.  This project is to run across three financial 
years with the anticipated cost of each alarm system expected to be in the region 
of £35,000.  Year 1 will be in 20/21 with the replacement of three systems at an 
expected cost of £105,000.  This project has been added to the current HRA 
Capital Programme and will utilise some of the under spend noted above.

7.8. Capital funding expected to be applied during 2020/21 is lower than forecast due 
to the variances noted above.

Page 23



14

8.      Treasury Management

8.1. This section of the report sets out the key Treasury Management statistics in 
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a high 
level Treasury Management summary.  The Audit and Regulatory Committee 
receives detailed operational updates on Treasury Management.

Investments

8.2. Cash Investments held on the 30th June 2020 totalled £27.4million. The average 
level of funds available for investment up to the end of the quarter totalled 
£32.4million and £40,340 interest was earned.

8.3. The Council has budgeted to receive £160,000 in investment income in 2020/21. 
A shortfall of £61,280 is anticipated against this budget due to falling interest rates 
following the reduction of the Bank of England base rate to 0.10% in March 2020.

Borrowing

8.4. Outstanding borrowing at 30th June 2020 totalled £66.8 million. The Council’s 
general fund and HRA budgeted to incur £1,835,260 and £1,742,850 respectively 
in interest charges and other financing costs in 2020/21. This was based on 
existing external debt and new external debt to be taken during quarter 4 to fund 
the borrowing requirements arising from general fund capital programmes.

8.5. No ‘new’ borrowing or refinancing activity has occurred during quarter 1, therefore 
no variance to the budget is forecast at this stage.

9.       Revenue Collection

9.1. The collection rate outturn for Quarter 1 2020/21 was as follows:
 Council Tax – 28.47% of Council Tax was collected by 30th June 2020, 

compared to 29.64% for the same period last year.
o The effects of Covid-19 on collection rates are being monitored. The 

variance in the collection of Council Tax appears to be largely due to the 
delay in the commencement of recovery action and/ or inability to pay as 
opposed to deferred payment plans;

 Business Rates – 22.51% of Business Rates was collected by 30th June 
2020, compared with 30.01% for the same period last year.
o An analysis of the 15 NNDR accounts with the highest Rateable Values 

indicates that deferred payment plans account for majority of the variance 
in collection rates and this will unwind over the year assuming businesses 
can maintain their deferred plans when they commence. 

 Sundry Debts - The value of sundry debts over 60 days old at the end of 
Quarter 1 was £270,240 which compares with £178,520 at 30th June 2019.  
The level of arrears has been impacted by a delay in recovery action following 
onset of the pandemic.

Page 24



15

Annex A    

                   General Fund Capital Programme Update 30th June 2020

Scheme
2020/21 

Approved 
Budget 

Q1 
Changes

2020/21 
Revised  
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2020/21

Expected 
Variance 
2020/21

 £ £ £ £ £

Housing & Housing Standards      
Affordable Housing Project 667,000             -   667,000 667,000              -   
Disabled Facilities Grants 489,110             -   489,110 489,110              -   
Landlord Accreditation 61,180             -   61,180 30,000      (31,180) 
 1,217,290             -   1,217,290 1,186,110      (31,180) 
Property Services      
Asset Management Programme 2,520,300 18,570 2,538,870 1,668,340    (870,530) 
  2,520,300       18,570  2,538,870  1,668,340    (870,530) 
ICT 87,050 48,160 135,210 118,160      (17,050) 
       87,050       48,160     135,210     118,160      (17,050) 
Fleet Management      
Vehicle/Plant  Acquisitions     691,500     241,260 932,760             -      (932,760) 
CCTV       50,000             -   50,000 50,000              -   
     741,500     241,260     982,760       50,000    (932,760) 
Leisure Services      
Outdoor Sports Facilities Fund       50,000             -         50,000             -        (50,000) 
Football Development             -         10,000       10,000       10,000              -   
      
       50,000       10,000       60,000       10,000      (50,000) 
Regeneration      
Buxton Crescent & Spa       25,570     (12,320) 13,250 63,250        50,000 
       25,570     (12,320)       13,250       63,250        50,000 
Horticulture      
Play Facilities 9,040 90,000 99,040       90,000       (9,040) 
        9,040       90,000       99,040       90,000       (9,040) 
      
Total General Fund  4,650,750     395,670  5,046,420  3,185,860 (1,860,560) 

Page 25



16

Annex B

Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme Update 30th June 2020

Scheme

Approved 
Budget 
2020/21

Q1 
Changes

2020/21 
Revised 
Budget

2020/21 
Expected 
Outturn 

Over / 
(Under) 
Spend

ASSET MANAGEMENT WORKS: £ £ £ £
Roofing & External Works 460,000 - 460,000 514,000 54,000
Gamesley Cladding Works 200,000 - 200,000 125,000 (75,000)
Bathroom Programme 400,000 20,000 420,000 420,000 -
Kitchen Programme 954,170 20,000 974,170 903,520 (70,650)
Electrical Works 409,430 20,000 429,430 429,430 -
Central Heating Works 224,630 - 224,630 94,630 (130,000)
Queens Court Boiler Replacement 200,000 - 200,000 - (200,000)
Windows and Doors Programme 1,193,360 - 1,193,360 1,093,360 (100,000)
Aids & Adaptations 295,000 50,000 345,000 345,000 -
Structural Works (Various) 93,000 - 93,000 93,000 -
Lift Replacements 190,000 10,000 200,000 20,000 (180,000)
Queens Court Lightning Protection 20,000 - 20,000 29,000 9,000
Sheltered Fire Alarm Upgrades - - - 105,000 105,000
 4,639,590 120,000 4,759,590 4,171,940 (587,650)
REPAIRS TEAM CAPITAL WORKS
Void Rewires 70,000 - 70,000 64,000 (6,000)
Void Kitchens  155,000 - 155,000 142,000 (13,000)
Void Bathrooms  70,000 - 70,000 64,000 (6,000)
 295,000 - 295,000 270,000 (25,000)
STAFFING & PROFESSIONAL FEES
Staffing Recharges/ Commissioning Costs 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 -
 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 -
VEHICLE PURCHASING
Vehicle Purchases 242,500 - 242,500 90,000 (152,500)
 242,500 - 242,500 90,000 (152,500)
 
TOTAL SPEND 5,277,090 120,000 5,397,090 4,631,940 (765,150)

Page 26



APPENDIX B

2020/21

First Quarter
 Procurement 

Review

Page 27



1. Introduction

1.1 A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from Procurement activity which was 
approved by Full Council in February 2017. 

1.2 The current Procurement Strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives 
linked closely with the Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives.  
The key actions included, delivery of cashable savings, development of a 
professional Procurement unit, updated Procurement Rules to support 
transparency and the implementation of electronic tendering processes and 
procurement systems.

1.3 The Procurement Strategy is now due for updating and is scheduled for 
presentation during 2020 initially as an Information Digest report to obtain 
Member feedback prior to final approval.  The revised strategy will focus on the 
following key objectives to support the aims of the Council’s Corporate plan:

 Delivering Value for Money
 Commercial focus and effective Contract Management
 Maintaining Transparency and Ethical practices through effective leadership
 Promoting Responsible and Sustainable Procurement 
 Supporting the Local Economy and Business Growth
 Delivering Social Value (CSR) through our Contracts

2. First Quarter Completed Procurements

2.1 The activity supported by the procurement function for the first quarter April 2020 
to June 2020 is summarised below:

First Quarter  
High Value 

(> £181,000)

Low Value

 (< £181,000)
Total

HPBC Only 1 20 21
JOINT (HP/SM) - 6 6
TOTAL 1 26 27

2.2 Annex A provides details of the 27 procurement exercises completed during 
Quarter 1.  

3. 2020/21 Procurement Forward Plan 

3.1 The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or high 
value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for either completion or starting 
in 2020/21.

Page 28



2019/20

Activity

High Value 

(> £181,000k)

 Low Value

 (< £181,000k)
Total

HPBC 10 31 41
JOINT (HP/SM) 3 22 25
TOTAL 13 53 66

In addition to the above, there are 133 listed entries brought forward from 
previous years (for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC combined). 

3.2 Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled for 
delivery in 2020/21 includes:-

 IT Managed Service Support Contract 
 Supporting delivery of the Fleet Replacement Strategy
 Glossop Market Hall and Phase 2 Municipal Buildings Roofing and internal 

works
 Construction Materials Supplies – Direct Services
 HRA minor works contracts – Electrical / Roofing / Bathrooms / Heating capital 

programmes

4. Procurement Performance

4.1 This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement activity 
and the payment of suppliers.

4.2 Performance for the first quarter is highlighted below:-

Performance Indicator Target Performance at 
30th June 2020

% of Alliance Procurement 
Activity on Forward Plan 65% 97%

Annual contract spend as % 
of gross expenditure budget

85% 83%

% Of invoices paid within 30 
days 96% 97%

Performance Indicators – targets off track

4.3 We are continuing our communication programme of regular service review 
meetings to ensure planned activity is captured and monitored on the plan.  We 
are continuing to work with service areas to ensure they are compliant in 
commissioning Supplies, Services or Works and that the internal processes are 
adhered to.

Page 29



4.4 For 2020/2021 additional new performance indicators have been introduced; these 
are currently being measured to establish targets to implement for 2021/2022.

 % of EOI (expressions of interest) that come from businesses within the local 
area (over £5,000)

 % of Contracts awarded to local suppliers following submission of EOI
        (over £5,000)
 Supplier (Creditor) spend within the local area as a % of total spend

Page 30



ANNEX A
First Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – HPBC

Contract Title Brief contract description Recurring 
or One Off 

Service Area Procedure Award Detail Term / 
Duration

 Total 
Contract 
Value £    

Civils Work / 
Minor Works 
Framework

Inc. Groundworks, stone and 
Brickwork, Drainage, 
Resurfacing & Fencing

Multi Contractor framework

Recurring Assets
Housing 
Repairs

OPEN Tender Alliance Group 
Solutions

CT 
Construction 

Hardyman
 
Haystoun 

MCP 
Properties

Three Shires

2 yrs TCV est. 
£200k

Future High 
Street Fund

Financial 
Assessment

Consultancy Appointment to 
support regeneration project 
– Future High Streets Fund

One Off Regeneration Single Source Vixcroft 4 
months

55,350

ILR and Master 
Plan 

Trans Pennine 
Upgrade

Consultancy Appointment
Delivery of a Local Impact 
Report to the Examining 
Authority for Highways 
England's application for a 
Development Consent Order 
to construct two link roads as 
part of the Trans Pennine 
Upgrade programme of 
works.

One Off Regeneration Direct award 
via DCC 
highways 
contract

(2 exercises 
completed 
prior via Open 
and 
Framework 
routes  - no 
bids received)

AECOM 7 
months

49,960

Specialist 
external drain 
network works

Housing 
Properties at 
Whaley Bridge 

Consultancy and remedial 
works

To resolve pest issues at 
properties affected 

One Off Housing 
Repairs 

Direct Award Rentokil One off
Est 
start 

July 20

22,400

Footpath and 
riverbank 
remedial works 
at Warmbrook 
Consultancy 

Consultancy appointment for 
architects design / 
specification  to resolve 
current structural issues – 
contractor to be appointed 
post design phase

One Off Assets Open 
Quotation

RAB 
Consultants

2 
months

18,405

Design and Print 
High Peak 
walking guides 

Co-ordinate and align the 
walking guides for several 
HP Town Councils as part of 
the BEIS external funding 
initiative

One Off Regeneration Open 
Quotation

Hammer 
Design

7 
months

12,350

Page 31



Renewable 
Heating Sources 
Pavilion 
Gardens and 
Queens Court

Consultancy appointment to 
appraise and recommend 
renewable heating source 
options for named projects 
and additional locations 
during term

One Off Assets Further 
Competition 
via Framework

Carbon Smart 
T/A Avieco Ltd

1 yr 10,535

Accelerated 
Housing 
Delivery Project

Appointment of 
marketing agent 

Marketing consultant 
required to assist with the 
sale of the land for 
development 

One Off Regeneration Further 
Competition 
via Framework

CBRE 6 
months

10,000

Bernard Street 
Car Park 
Glossop
Wall remedial 
works

Minor works contract to 
rebuild wall at Bernard Street 
Car park

Est start post COVID-19 
restriction lifts Summer 2020

One Off Assets Contract 
variation

Alliance Group 
Solutions ltd

One off 7,482

Housing 
development – 
lead time and 
build rate 
analysis

5 Year Housing land supply 
Additional requirement and 
update of information 

One Off Development 
Control 

Single Source Capita 
Property and 
Infrastructure

3 
months

4,390

Assessment of 
Viability 
Appraisal

Planning application 
(Detail  restricted)

One Off Development 
Control

Request for 
Quotations

Keppie 
Massey

2 
months

2,750

CITB SMSTS 
Refresher 
Course

Training and development

Refresher CITB SMSTS 
(Site Management Safety 
Training) 

Course for 6 members of 
staff working within Assets 
and Housing Repairs

One Off Transformation
Human 
Resources 

Request for 
Quotations

Envico One off 2,180

Gully Cleansing 
and Ad-hoc 
Jetting / 
Drainage 
Clearances

AES  PHASE 3 NOVATION 
– Street cleansing

Contract 
Change

Direct 
Services 

ACL Highways & AES
Novation to existing contract

Horticultural 
Small Plant and 
Tools Supply

AES  PHASE 3 NOVATION 
– Grounds maintenance

Contract 
Change

Direct 
Services

Tudor Environmental Ltd & AES
Novation to existing contract

The following items were removed or deferred from the Procurement work plan for 20/21
Consultation April 2020 Reviews  with service leads

Burbage Heights Footway – minor works
Construction of new footway 

Removed 

Assets

Page 32



Porch Canopy replacements Housing Properties (HRA Capital)
To be incorporated into Housing Repairs ad-hoc replacements
Not capital project – item removed 

Removed 

Assets

Eccles Fold Car Port 
On hold 

Removed
Subject to review

Assets

Remedial repair works to Manor Park Grounds Maintenance Depot
Work completed through existing arrangement

Removed

Assets

Christmas Illuminations – set up and dismantle
Transferred to AES to procure for Christmas 2020
No future requirement

Removed

Service Commissioning

Empty Property VOID cleaning and clearances
Vacant housing properties clearances 
Transferred to in-house provision – Estate Caretakers
No future external requirement

Removed

Housing (Repairs)

Damp Surveying and remedial works
Housing Properties
Completed in house
No future external requirement

Removed

Housing (Repairs)

Page 33



First Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – JOINT (HPBC & SMDC)

Contract Title Brief contract description Recurring 
or One Off 

Service Area Procedure Award 
Detail

Term / 
Duration

 Total 
Contract 
Value £    

Digital Customer 
Portal

Development, hosing and 
support
Licences and agreement 
renewal 
Crown Commercial G Cloud 

Recurring Transformation Call off 
Framework 
Agreement

IEG4 1 + 1 
yrs

223,062

Public Buildings 
Condition and 
Measured 
Surveys

Consultancy appointment

Phase one – 5 sites

Recurring Assets Single 
Source

Oakleaf 
Group

TBC 8,975

Playground 
equipment 
supplies

Replacement parts for 
repairs

Novation phase 3 AES 

Contract 
change

Service 
Comm. / Direct 
services 

Transferred 
to AES

BG Sports and Leisure &AES

Novation to existing contract

The following items were removed or deferred from the Procurement work plan for 20/21
Consultation April 2020 Reviews  with service leads

Property Management Landlord and Tenant Lease renewals 
Consultancy Support – Estates

Not to be renewed, no longer required for external support – now in house

Removed

Assets

Mechanical & Electrical (M&E) Consultancy Framework
Framework not to be procured for HP/SM 
Call off from National frameworks will support level of spend required for appointment of M&E 
services

Removed

Assets

Mechanical Grave digging services

No longer required not to be renewed – transferred to AES under Phase 3 

Removed

Service Commissioning

Page 34



 

 

High Peak Performance and Customer Feedback Report: 2020/ 2021 (Q1) 

  

P
age 35



59%

39%

2%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

On Track Off Track N/A

High Peak Q1 Summary  

The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at High Peak for the period April to June 2020 in relation to the 
Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects. The report also provides an overview of the results 
from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of how we handle and learn from complaints, and the level of comments and 
compliments.       

Performance Overview  

There are 152 ‘monthly’, ‘quarterly’ and ‘annual only’ reported performance measures at High Peak (31 more than last year). The chart below 
shows the results for the first quarter of 2020/21 against the monthly and quarterly measures only, which make up approximately a third of 
the performance framework. At 59% ‘on track’ the Q1 results are just 1% lower than 2019, despite the effect of lockdown, and the trend 
shows an increase of 16% from 33% to 49% performing better than last year. The actions being taken to address the ‘off track’ measures are 
detailed at the end of this report. 

The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the previous Corporate 
Plan. The table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the current status of these actions / projects.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Customer Feedback Overview  

The number of complaints closed during Quarter One (8) was much lower than last year (47). Repeat complaints are ‘on track’ whilst 
responding to complaints in 10 days fell short of target due to one complex case but is expected to meet target by year end. This report 
includes further details of the lessons learned from complaints and any repeat issues.      

  

 Off Track 

 In danger of going off Track 

 On Track 

 Not yet started / decision 
awaited 

 Complete / Closed 

49%

33%

18%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

P
age 36



0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

On Track Off Track N/A

HP Aim 1: June Results 2020/21

   Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The ‘off track’ measures at High Peak include several homelessness indicators measuring the council’s response to the duties of prevention 
and relief and the use of temporary accommodation. The impact of coronavirus can be seen in these results with increased numbers of 
presentations from the ‘everyone in’ initiative to address rough sleeping. It should be noted however, that the number of placements in 
temporary accommodation has reduced significantly since May. At High Peak the repairs PI measuring the number of jobs per operative has 
decreased due to the pandemic and the team’s ability to deal only with emergency and external works.       

Celebrating Success:  

At the end of Quarter One the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets: 

 external sports funding secured 
 carelink response times 
 processing benefit new claims and change of circs 

 
 

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

HP Aim1 : Trends June 2020/21

P
age 37



2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions Status Commentary – June 
Complete the review of the CCTV system 
and implement the agreed 
recommendations 

 Once access to Ecclesfold is granted the installation can be completed. 

Develop and implement an ongoing 
leisure facilities improvement plan 
focused on improving the health and 
well- being of residents   

 Consultancy work to look at the future plan is going out to Framework, looking to appoint in 
the next few weeks. 

Implement the accelerated housing 
delivery programme 

 Individual project updates within the programme: 
3.1 Fairfield Roundabout: Awaiting a response from Homes England. Legal department are 
dealing with the golf club lease 
3.2 Granby Road- No update for Q1. 

Develop a Private Sector Housing 
Strategy to improve conditions for 
private renters  

 The strategy is being produced and will incorporate links with the Climate Change agenda 

Refresh the Council’s Communication 
Strategy in order to ensure that there is a 
more effective dialogue with residents 

 A report is going to ALT/Exec/Cabinet. Also, an information digest report will be sent to 
members. 

Review the Council’s community support 
arrangements in order to maintain 
strong partnerships with community 
groups 

 Delayed due to Covid 19 and the recovery plan. A committee report will be delivered in 12 
months 

Review the Community Safety Strategy 
to ensure that the Council is supportive 
in fighting crime and anti- social 
behaviour 

 Review of CSS at both Councils to be completed by April 2021 along with proposals for the 
future 

Review the Sport and Physical Activity 
Strategy in order to integrate 
communities and sports clubs into the 
delivery of its objectives 

 Pending following the impact of Covid 19, refresh will be undertaken in current financial year. 
 

P
age 38



Implement the Homelessness Strategy 
effectively to ensure that voluntary 
groups and social enterprises that work 
to tackle the issue are supported 
effectively 

 The homeless reports have already been written, we need to understand funding and 
commitments and produce detail and structure for delivery. Review of funding streams / 
allocations during 2020/21 to be carried out - to target strategy objectives.  Post Covid input 
to be included, including next steps for the accommodation programme. 

Review the delivery of services to older 
persons to ensure that they are effective 

 Head of Service writing a report in regard to Carelink – this will need input from Finance. We 
also need to look at the wider provision of services to older people, the provision of 
designated accommodation and the equalities element. 

Continuing Influencing actions 
Maintaining the provision of accessible 
health and social care  
 
 

High Peak: 
In Q3 the committee considered the following reports:  Leisure Centre Options; Air Quality Management 
Area Action Plan for Tintwistle; Declaration of an Air Quality Management Area on part of the A57, 
Dinting Vale, Glossop. Nothing to report in Q1 in terms of health. 

New Influencing Actions – The following actions are new to the 2019-2023 Corporate Plans. The project delivery 
mechanism for each is being set up through the Transformation Board and updates will begin as each project launches.  
 Dealing with anti-social behaviour   

 

 

Managing our strategic risks 

The Council has identified, assessed and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim One: 

• Meeting the increased and changing demands on council services caused by demographic changes in the local population (including an 
aging population) 

• The ability to effectively engage with our communities 
• Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults (meeting the legal duty) 
• Influencing strategic relationships at county and regional level in support of local area objectives 

 

P
age 39



0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

On Track Off Track

HP Aim 2: June Results 2020/21

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money 

 
        

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

A number of procurement PIs measuring the new ‘local’ focus were unable to report in Q1 due to complications in obtaining the data and staff 
resources but should be in place for Q2. High Peak is below target for business rates, council tax and sundry debt collection rates due to the 
financial impacts of lockdown on residents and businesses. Similarly, performance in re-letting voids remains 15 days above its 25-day target 
due to the restrictions imposed on letting from March to May during lockdown. Internal audit recommendation implementation and FOI 
response times have also been negatively affected by lockdown.      

Celebrating Success:     

At the end of Quarter One the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets: 

 rent loss 
 sickness absence 
 invoice processing 
 procurement activity on the forward plan 
 repeat complaints 
 social media followers 

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

HP Aim 2: Trends June 2020/21

P
age 40



 2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions Status Commentary – June 
Provide advice and support for 
residents affected by the rollout of 
Universal Credit   

 Review to be carried out of the original report and how we support residents. Review of 
LCTR and the options going forward. 

Develop and implement a plan to 
identify new and innovative ways of 
generating income 
 

 Individual project updates within the action: 
3.1 Advertising/Sponsorship- need to look at the work already done and review timescales 
3.2 Fees & Charges- annual budget 
3.3 Empty properties -Empty property review being conducted. Next Empty Property review 
commencing July 2020.  Review actions from Empty Property Strategy during 2020/21 
3.4 Building Control- meeting to be held between Exec and Head of Service 
3.5 Trade Waste- need to determine an approach with AES 

Continue to embed good 
information management practices 
through the ASSURED framework 

 The programme of Information Asset Register challenge sessions which commenced in 2019 
will re-commence in September.  Animated Privacy Notices under development for the 
website. ICT and Info Security Policy reviewed and waiting for Trades Union consideration.  

Refresh and implement the Asset 
Management Plan, including a 
review of public estate, and ensure 
adequate facilities management 
arrangements are in place 

 Individual project updates within the plan: 
14.1 Asset Management Plan- No update for Q1 
14.2 Capital programme - Ongoing with numerous sites 
14.3 HRA Capital programme - Kitchens and bathrooms are under way – full update required 
in the next 2 weeks. 
14.4 Land Disposal strategy- we have a significant plan for land disposal.  Facilities 
Management is being looked at in conjunction with Housing Repairs. 
14.5 Facilities Management Arrangements - regularise the arrangement with DCC 

Develop an Access to Services 
Strategy to ensure that Council 
services are accessible to all 

 The project will overlap with the IT/Digital strategy, a meeting has taken place with 
Transformation. Work is currently taking place to produce the outline. Once approved, the 
action plan for delivery will be over the next 3 to 4 years 

Implement the Council’s Efficiency 
and Rationalisation Programme 
(This will focus on a number of 
projects including procurement, 
income generation, trading, 
advertising and sponsorship, etc.) 

 Individual project updates within the action:  
2.1 Parish Grants- to be reviewed with the Executive 
2.2 Refresh Efficiency & Rationalisation programme- Within the medium-term financial plan. 
Possible upfront funding required to implement the programme. The initial review is to be 
presented in September 2020, the formal review as part of MTFP for March 2021 
2.3 Hybrid mail- This will be complete once fully rolled out, Sundry Debts and Rents now 
being picked up 
 
 

P
age 41



Priority Actions Status Commentary – June 
Develop a new Organisational 
Development Strategy to ensure 
effective workforce development 
and use of apprenticeships  

 Information Digest being created. The strategy will identify a number of projects for delivery 

Develop a new procurement 
strategy with a focus on spending 
money locally 

 New strategy to go to Cabinet/Exec/ALT, information digest report to go to all members.  
Formal strategy to be presented in the autumn, which will result in an action plan over the 
next 3 to 4 yrs. 

Develop a new ICT strategy to 
enhance and support the delivery of 
services 

 A report is going to ALT/Exec/Cabinet. Also, an information digest report will be sent to 
members. Individual project updates within the strategy:  
2.1 Housing management -delayed due to Covid19 and will be picked up as soon as possible 
2.2 meetings AV equipment-no update 
2.3 IPAP/Assure- reached testing stage but the software is not ready, on hold until IlAP is fit 
for purpose 
2.4 Civica Pay- ready to go, resources and timescales for implementation before year end. 
2.5 Civica Open Revenues- briefing note being developed for the customer portal 
2.6 Env Health/Licencing- no roadmap for flare implementation, collective needs to be 
completed first 
2.7 Asset Management-Concerto: PC pilot study is up and running, timeline for completion 
is the end of this year. Training planned for the full team, go live date planned for Jan 2021 
2.8 Collective- delayed due to Covid 19, resources to be allocated and will get back on track 
as soon as possible 
2.9 Committee Management- looking at production of the forward plan and the quality of 
reports. 
2.10 ICT upgrade- M365 is ongoing, Teams has been rolled out to all Heads of Service and 
Councillors, P1's to be completed in the coming weeks. RDSW10- super users are testing the 
main systems. 

Refresh the council's 
Communication Strategy in order to 
ensure there is a more effective 
dialogue and engagement with 
residents 

 A report is going to ALT/Exec/Cabinet. Also, an information digest report will be sent to 
members. 

Conduct a review of democratic 
processes and scrutiny 
arrangements to make the Council 
as open and transparent as possible 
 

 This will be reviewed before the next municipal year 

P
age 42



Priority Actions Status Commentary – June 
Review the council's Diversity 
Policies including working with faith 
and cultural groups to celebrate the 
traditions and diversity of our 
community 

 To be reviewed and refreshed in the next 12 months 

Implement the agreed Housing 
Revenue Account Business Plan 

 The HRA Business Plan has been updated and presented as part of the Budget/MTFP report.   
The Business plan action plan is completed.   
The financially sustainable position over the 30 years is based on updated financial 
information – including results of the 100% stock condition surveys. The financial position is 
being updated as part of the MTFP process. However, risks/challenges remain, so there is an 
action plan appended to the HRA Business Plan.  A meeting took place, the action plan was 
reviewed and actions agreed. 
Right to Buy and Repairs functions are being reviewed; the repairs plan is to be taken to the 
members group. Tenant participation work is to be taken forward as part of the tenant 
advisory service. Estate master plans are to be reviewed. 

 

 

 

Managing our strategic risks 

The Council has identified, assessed and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Two: 

• Delivery of MTFP through the Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy 
• Staff resources and retention 
• Effective contract management 
• Effective Information Governance arrangements (breach of data protection regulations) 
• Maintenance of Council's portfolio of public buildings assets  
• Investment into council assets and long-term planning 
• Financial and Legislative impacts from world events e.g. Brexit  
• Cyber risk and IT Security 

P
age 43



0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

On Track Off Track

HP Aim 3: June Results 2020/21 

Aim 3: Support economic development and regeneration  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

High Peak currently has a perfect record under Aim Three with all targets ‘on track’ as at the end of June; including 100% of major planning 
applications determined on time.          

   

Celebrating Success:     

At the end of Quarter One the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets: 

 Major, Minor and other planning applications processed on time 
 major and minor developments allowed on appeal 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

HP Aim 3: Trends June 2020/21

P
age 44



2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions Status Commentary – June 
Support the development of 
Glossop Halls 
 

 Individual project updates within the action: 
6.1 Market Hall tenant relocation is underway. 
6.2 Market Hall roof - completion expected within 12 months 
6.3 Plan for new operating model for market/town hall complex- a new operating model will 
be produced after the roof has been completed 
6.4 Plan for new operating model for Victoria Hall- a new operating model will be produced 
after the roof has been completed 
6.5 Trust arrangements- Town Hall- work is in progress 
6.6 Trust arrangements- Victoria Hall - work is in progress 

Implement the accelerated business 
growth and employment 
programme 

 Individual projects within the programme: 
5.1 Chapel Masterplan: Ongoing- no specific update for Q1. 
5.2 Dinting Employment Site-Ongoing, no specific update for Q1 

Establish a developer open space 
contributions plan. 

 This will form part of the Developer Contributions SPD which is intended to incorporate 
guidance on all forms of contributions to be sought via S106. The SPD will be commissioned 
once the ongoing consideration of the viability and merits of the Community Infrastructure 
Levy has concluded. A Viability Study for CIL is due for completion in Summer 2020 (a further 
draft report is due in June). The Council is also reviewing the wider implications of adopting a 
levy such as back-office staffing and administration requirements. The Development Services 
and Service Commissioning teams will need to collaborate on the open space aspects of the 
SPD which is intended to be commissioned to provide sufficient resource to take it forward. 
Update for Q1-Head of Development Services to advise Corporate Select committee 

Develop a Cultural Strategy to 
support and celebrate the rich 
history and culture of the Borough 

 Strategy to be produced by December, work should progress from now to do a COVID Health 
Check to identify implications and produce a plan 

Review the Council’s Growth 
strategy to ensure that it is focused 
on the effective regeneration of our 
towns and rural communities  

 Individual project updates within the strategy: 
High Peak: 
6.1 Buxton future high street fund- Expected in September 
6.2 Buxton HAZ- Progressing: a cultural survey is required, recruitment to PO post 
6.3 Buxton VES- Report being written about the adoption of the strategy 
6.4 Buxton Crescent-Issues have arisen around events, we are making sure the position has 
not changed in light of COVID. 
6.5 Glossop & Gamesley OPE- Issues have arisen around the bid/Loan ratio. we have received 
interest from the police in GMB. 
 

P
age 45



6.6 OPE depot review-Waiting for DCC to take through to Committee. 
6.7 Refreshed growth strategy-Currently on hold 
6.8 Investment & Acquisition strategy- Local Plan Housing delivery plan 
  

Review the implementation of the 
Local Plan to ensure that the 
requirements for affordable housing 
and developer contributions are 
being met 

 The review is underway, a meeting will be arranged with Policy and Regeneration 

Influencing Actions                
Work with the private sector on 
regeneration schemes including The 
Crescent and Torr Vale Mill    
 

The Crescent: The regeneration team are continuing to engage with the project via progress meetings and 
Buxton Crescent Communications plan 

Ensure the best use of public assets 
across the borough by working via 
the One Public Estate project 

Project delivery team and project board established for Glossop and Gamesley OPE. Report outlining 
Glossop and Gamesley OPE, Depot OPE (Glossop elements) and Glossop Gateway project taken to E&G 
committee in November. Awaiting clarification on grant offer and element of repayment before agreeing 
date of next meeting 

New Influencing Actions – The following actions are new to the 2019-2023 Corporate Plans. The project delivery 
mechanism for each is being set up through the Transformation Board and updates will begin as each project launches. 
 Pressing for more regular and faster rail links, public transport links and essential road infrastructure 
 Work with regional partners to extend the Greater Manchester rail offer 
 Completion of the off- road route for the Trans Pennine Trail and access to the Monsal and Tissington trails 
 Bringing additional funding into the Borough 
 Enabling high- speed internet across the Borough 

 

Managing our strategic risks 

The Council has identified, assessed and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Three: 

• External funding for growth / regeneration schemes 

 

P
age 46



0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

On Track Off Track

HP Aim 4: June Results 2020/21 

 

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

At High Peak the only ‘off track’ measure at the close of Q1 is the kg of residual waste, which is estimated at 116kg and is lower than the Q1 
2019 figure. Fly tipping became a contextual measure during the last framework review but the June data reveals significant increases 
compared to last year.             

 

Celebrating Success:     

At the end of Quarter One the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets: 

 missed bins 
 reduced paper consumption 
 estimated recycling rates 

 

    

 

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

HP Aim 4 : Trends June 2020/21

P
age 47



 2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions  Status Commentary – June 
Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the 
transfer of services to Alliance 
Environmental Services Ltd, to deliver 
waste, streets and ground 
maintenance services on behalf of the 
Council in order to achieve improved 
performance and value for money 
outcomes. 

 COMPLETED 
Phase 3 (streets and ground maintenance) transfer completed 1st April 2020. 
Awaiting return of IT equipment and closure report.  

Develop a climate change strategy 
and an action plan of response to a 
declared climate emergency 

 Plans to be produced by the end of the year. Ongoing projects will come out of this piece 
of work. 

Develop a Parks Development Plan to 
support the widest community use of 
parks and support 
community/friends’ groups 

 Individual project updates within the plan: 
12.1 Parks development plan to be completed this financial year- needs a consultation 
exercise 
12.2 Whitfield Play area- work has commenced will be completed in August 
12.3 Play Strategy will be produced alongside the park’s development plan 

Review the Council's waste and 
recycling arrangements to increase 
recycling and to respond to the 
emerging national strategy 

 Individual projects within the action: 
14.1/14.2 Covid has delayed central Gov't progress, expectations not expected to be 
known until 2021 
14.2 TEEP has not started, simplified assessment will be completed in the coming months.  

Review the Environmental 
Enforcement Policy in order to take 
steps to further reduce dog fouling 
and littering  

 Policies to be reviewed and updated in the next 12 months  

New Influencing Actions - The following actions are new to the 2019-2023 Corporate Plans. The project delivery 
mechanism for each is being set up through the Transformation Board and updates will begin as each project launches. 
 Develop more cycle routes whilst working with the County Council and residents to ensure harmony amongst road users 
 Encourage local organisations and businesses to reduce their carbon footprint 

 

 

 

P
age 48



 

Managing our strategic risks 

The Council has identified, assessed and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Four: 

• Meeting the environmental regulatory framework (e.g. air quality and waste regs) 

• Energy supply (inc fuel) 
• Our ability to protect Buxton's natural thermal spring water 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 49



 

P
age 50



 

P
age 51



 

Areas for Improvement: June 2020 

Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2020/21 

Result  
June 2020   

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve) 

NEW: % of initial 
homelessness applications 
opened at the prevention 

and relief duty stages 

Aim 1: Fit for purpose 
housing stock that meets 
the needs of tenants & 

residents 

Head of Housing  65% 
prevention  

40% 
prevention 
60% relief 

Continuing impact of CV19 & the backlog from the 
number of cases in the homelessness initiative 

 

NEW: % of prevention duty 
discharges resulting in a 
settled accommodation 

outcome 

 72% 67% Continuing impact of CV19 & the backlog from the 
number of cases in the homelessness initiative 

NEW: % of relief duty 
discharges resulting in a 
settled accommodation 

outcome 

 67% 63% Continuing impact of CV19 & the backlog from the 
number of cases in the homelessness initiative 

NEW: Number of TA 
placements (including B&B 
made for families) placed 

over 6 weeks 

0 1 (no 
families) 

This is a placement under the 'Everyone in' 
initiative 

Average number of jobs 
completed per operative 

per day (DLO) 

Head of Operational 
Services 

4.75 4.03 The service area is operating with limited 
resources due to the implications of COVID-19; we 
are only attending external and emergency works. 
This has had a massive negative impact on 
performance, and it will not improve until the 
service area returns to full operations. 

a) Number of RTB 
transactions (applications) 
& b) % completed within 

statutory timescales (RTB2) 

Head of Legal & 
Elections 

95% a)6 b) 4/6 
66% 

2 were accepted over the 28 days but have been 
further delayed due to no valuations being carried 
out. 

P
age 52



Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2020/21 

Result  
June 2020   

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve) 

% of 'high risk' premises (A-
C) inspected per annum 

Aim 1: Effective provision 
of high-quality public 

amenities, clean streets 
and environmental health 

Head of 
Environmental 

Health 

100% 0% There have been no physical inspections carried 
out since 1/04 due to Covid 19. The food team will 
be operational again from 20/07 

% of routine permitted 
process premises inspected  

Head of 
Environmental 

Health 

100% 0% 
There have been no physical inspections carried 
out since 1/04 due to Covid 19. The food team will 
be operational again from 20/07 

Complaint handling: % dealt 
with within 10 working days 

Aim 2: Readily available 
services in the appropriate 

channels provided right 
first time 

Head of Customer 
Services  

97% 88% Just 8 complaints received to date, 1 late response 
relating to a very complex case involving a lengthy 
investigation - service areas reminded to provide 
complainant with an update regarding any delays 
in providing a full response  

Average time taken to re-let 
Council homes 

 

Aim 2: : More effective 
use of Council assets to 

benefit our communities 

Head of Housing   25 days 40.9 days Average time excluding hard to let (inc properties 
affected by Covid restrictions) – 11.8 days (Apr -
Jun). This month we had seven voids that were 
over target due to the current Covid 19 
restriction, including two that required major 
works.  This resulted in a loss of 322 days and a 
rent loss of £4,039.48 due to Covid.   

Collection rates: Business 
rates (% Business rates 

collected as a % of business 
rates due) 

Aim 2: Ensure our future 
financial resilience can be 

financially sustainable 
whilst offering value for 

money 

Head of Revenues 
and Benefits 

98.2% 22.51% 

Effects of Covid on income being monitored 

Collection rates: Council Tax 
(% Council tax collected as a 

% of Council tax due) 

98.2% 28.47% 

Effects of Covid on income being monitored 

P
age 53



Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2020/21 

Result  
June 2020   

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve) 

Collection rates: Sundry 
Debt (value of SD over 60 

days) 

Aim 2: Ensure our future 
financial resilience can be 

financially sustainable 
whilst offering value for 

money 

Head of Revenues 
and Benefits 

2% reduction £270,235.18 There is over £100k outstanding due to business 
rates on hold and a large number of trade waste 
accounts which may be cancelled if the businesses 
were not trading due to the Covid 19 lockdown 

Use of Contracts Register- 
annual contract spend as% 

of gross expenditure budget 

Head of Finance 2% 
improvement 

to 19/20 

83% During the first quarter of 2020/21, the impact of 
COVID-19 Coronavirus pandemic caused 
significant disruption to the planned procurement 
exercises to be delivered during this period and 
subsequently, as a result of the situation, we 
experienced a rise in business critical sourcing 
activity which was not under formal contract. The 
planned activity (and including a number of 
pending contract awards) which were deferred 
prior and during this period are now being 
recovered and progressed for completion, which 
we anticipate will increase the amount of spend 
which is classed as ‘under contract’ 

% of Internal Audit 
recommendations 

implemented within 
timescale (snapshot at end 

of each quarter) 

Head of Internal 
Audit 

98% 49.46% 
The usual audit recommendation process was 
suspended during April-June due to the impact of 
Covid-19 but will be fully reintroduced from July 
2020. 

FOI requests: % responded 
to within statutory time 

frame (include numbers in 
commentary) 

Aim 2: Ensure our services 
are readily available to all 

our residents in the 
appropriate channels and 
provided 'right first time' 

Head of Legal & 
Elections 

95% 76.07% 
89/117 Response timescales have been affected by the 

impact of Covid 19. 

KG’s residual waste per 
household 

Aim 4: Effective recycling 
and waste management 

Head of Service 
Commissioning 

435kg 115.71kg 

  (estimate) 

Estimated figured. Result at this point in 2019-20 
was 138.73kg per household. 

 

P
age 54



  

 For a full list of all performance measures and the Q1 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this link 

 

P
age 55

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/system/files/documents/attachments/high_peak_q1_2020-21.pdf


T
his page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Corporate Select Committee

28th September 2020

1. Reason for the Report

1.1     The purpose of the report is to present an updated summary version of the 
Medium-Term Financial Plan 2020/21 – 2023/24, forecasting the longer term 
impact the Coronavirus pandemic has had on the financial position of the 
Authority.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That Corporate Select Committee notes the forecast updated MTFP position.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The budget setting and medium term financial planning process provides the 
Council with the opportunity to plan its delivery of public services in 
accordance with local priorities. 

3.2      The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which set out the Council’s finances 
over a four-year period, namely 2020/21 to 2023/24 was formally approved in 
February 2020.  

3.3      This resulted in a small surplus position of £127,080 on the General Fund by 
the end of 2023/24, with an overall contribution of £17,910 into reserves over 
the 4 year life of the plan.  There was also a forecast surplus position of 
£2,061,950 by the end of 2023/24 for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
with an overall contribution into reserves of £0.93million. 

3.4 However, since the MTFP was approved, the Coronavirus pandemic has had, 
and is likely to continue having an adverse impact on the Council’s financial 
position.  The financial impact is arising from additional expenditure in dealing 
with the crisis both externally and organisationally, lost income and savings 
targets that may not be met within the same timeframe due to resources being 
diverted elsewhere.

TITLE: Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 – 
2023/24- Update 

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Cllr Alan Barrow – Executive Councillor for 
Finance & Corporate Services

CONTACT OFFICERS: Keith Pointon – Interim Head of Finance

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 57

Agenda Item 6



3.5 The 2020/21 projected General Fund outturn (as per the Quarter 1 financial 
report) is currently forecasting a £0.46 million deficit.  At the end of 2019/20, 
the Council established a Covid-19 earmarked reserve specifically to support 
with the financial impact of Covid-19 totalling £200,000 - utilising part of the 
2019/20 underspend generated.  Therefore, this earmarked reserve can be 
drawn to partially cover the projected 2020/21 deficit

3.6 The HRA is forecasting a £0.7million underspend against the 2020/21 budget 
as a result of delays in the delivery of the capital programme. 

3.7 The current four year MTFP has been updated to reflect Covid-19 related 
pressures and updated economic forecasts in order to begin to understand the 
medium term financial impact.  

3.8 It is extremely difficult to forecast how long the recovery period will be and also 
what impact the economic recession will have.  The report details the 
assumptions that have been made at this point (as well as the risks), which will 
be continually under review as new information becomes available and the 
2020/21 position develops.   

3.9 At this stage, the updated MTFP highlights a General Fund deficit over the 4 
year period of £1.7million.  Utilising the Covid-19 recovery earmarked reserve 
and re-designating the pensions earmarked reserve, would result in a required 
drawdown from contingency reserves of £1,289,910, as shown below:

General Fund £
MTFP Four Year Use of Reserves requirement 1,709,910
Covid-19 Recovery earmarked Reserve 200,000
Pensions Re-designated Reserve 220,000
Balance to be funded 1,289,910
General Fund Contingency 1,289,910
Balance to be funded 0
General Fund Contingency Balance 31st March 2020 2,841,000
Drawdown over 2020/21 – 2023/24 1,289,910
Forecast General Fund Contingency Balance by 31st March 2024 1,551,090

3.10 Consequently, at the end of year 4 of the plan (2023/24) there would be an 
estimated balance of £1.551million in General Fund Contingency reserves – 
£0.219 million above the required £1.3 million minimum required balance as 
set out by the Chief Finance Officer in the MTFP approved in February 2020.

3.11 The updated MTFP illustrates a requirement to draw from reserves in year 4 of 
the plan (2023/24) whereas the position at February 2020 was a small surplus 
position at that stage.  At the next iteration of the MTFP, an additional year will 
be added to the plan to understand if the Council is back to a balanced budget 
position at that point.

3.12 If reserves are utilised as forecast to fund the deficit position, a plan would 
need to be put into place in to rebuild reserves over the longer term.

Page 58



3.13 In terms of the HRA, the financial impact of COVID-19 is expected to be less 
severe – with an overall contribution into reserves of £0.155million over the 4 
years (a £0.78million reduction compared to £0.93million as assumed in 
February 2020)  The anticipated change in the reserves position as at the end 
of year 4 of the Plan is illustrated below:

HRA £
 £
MTFP Feb 2020 - forecast reserves at period end 31st March 2024 17,310,904
MTFP September 2020 – forecast reserves at 31st March 2024 16,619,244

Potential Reduction in Reserves Balance 691,660

Represented by:
Additional expenditure 777,430
Additional contribution to Reserves from 2019/20 Outturn Position* (85,770)

Net Reduction 691,660

*not anticipated at Budget setting in Feb 2020

3.14 The updated HRA MTFP illustrates a surplus position of £2.08million by year 4 
(2023/24), very similar to the MTFP presented in February – which showed a 
£2.06million surplus in year 4.

3.15 All of the above is subject to the assumptions as detailed in sections 11-13 
which is extremely difficult to forecast – and does not assume any further 
Government support.  These assumptions will be continually monitored.

3.16 The next iteration of the MTFP is due towards the end of the calendar year 
and then again alongside the presentation and setting of the Budget 2021/22 
in February 2021

4.      How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 
effective management of financial resources, which is the subject of this 
report.

5.       Options and Analysis

5.1  There are no options to consider at this stage.

6.  Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
The Council has been and will continue to support agencies in ensuring
compliance with social distancing regulations including the monitoring of
parks and open spaces and housing complexes.

Page 59



6.2 Workforce
The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted significantly on the working
arrangements for the Council’s employees.
The response to the pandemic has seen the following changes in working
practices:

 Where possible staff are working from home;
 Frontline staff are working safely with the appropriate PPE;
 Staff have been redeployed from time to time in order to support the

additional demand created by several new service functions, e.g.
small business and discretionary grant processing; providing support
for vulnerable people etc.
The Council has maintained and continues to maintain a good dialogue with
staff representatives and trade unions and they have and continue to be
supportive of the Councils approach.
The Council has established a recovery plan that ensures the safety of
staff as we look to reinstate services.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 
Diversity policies.

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken on the 
Corporate Plan, which feeds into budget plans.

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report.

6.5 Legal
There have been and continue to be a significant number of regulatory
changes during the response and recovery from the pandemic.

16.6 Climate Change
The COVID-19 response has resulted in some positive benefits in respect of
carbon reduction, including:

 Reduced employee travel during lockdown;
 Reduced energy consumption in public buildings due to building

closures and reduced use; and
 Improved air quality due to general reductions in travel.

It is important that these areas are reviewed to identify potential new ways of
working as part of the recovery process that will have a positive legacy on
the climate change challenge.
Although there is a positive environmental impact on the borough due to
reduced emissions, there has been an increase in environmental crime
which the Council is continuing to monitor and enforce if necessary.

6.7 Consultation
The Council’s annual budget plans are the subject of an annual public 
consultation exercise. 

6.4

Page 60



6.8  Risk A Risk Assessment
The pandemic has resulted in a number of risks that need to be assessed
and managed and may have a financial impact, these include:

 Inability to deliver critical services due to loss of staff,
 Inability to maintain the financial stability of the Council,
 Failure to deliver health and safety responsibilities,
 Safeguarding issues arise through the enhanced level of community

            support,
 Staff are at increased risk of the disease in certain services,
 Increased risk of fraud and cyber security,
 Lack of PPE for key workers,
 Increase in community safety issues which are difficult to respond to

           due to capacity,
 The economy is deflated post-recovery leading to ongoing economic

           problems in town centres and the broader economy,
 Increased demand on certain services e.g. Benefits and economic

           support.

Risk assessments have been completed for all services and mitigation
measures have been built into the Council’s recovery plans.
Financial risks have been identified within the report.

CLAIRE HAZELDENE
Interim Executive Director (Finance & Customer Services)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Various background working papers Keith Pointon
Interim Head of Finance
01538 395400 Ext. 4193

Page 61



7. Introduction

7.1 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is a key element of the Council’s 
budget and policy frameworks. It aims to ensure that resources are directed 
effectively and efficiently towards delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan. It 
describes the financial direction of the Council for planning purposes and 
outlines the financial pressures the Council is likely to experience over the 
next 4 years.

7.2 The current MTFP was approved by Full Council in February 2020, and the 
next scheduled update was due for presentation in November/December 
2020.

7.3 However, the Coronavirus pandemic has had, and is likely to continue having 
an adverse impact on the Council’s financial position.  The financial impact is 
arising from additional expenditure in dealing with the crisis both externally 
and organisationally, lost income and savings targets that may not be met 
within the same timeframe due to resources being diverted elsewhere.

7.4 There is concern about the longer-term financial impact this will have on the 
delivery of corporate plan objectives.  Therefore to attempt to understand and 
forecast this and to allow more time to effectively plan the longer term 
response, an early review of the MTFP has been undertaken. 

7.5 The review focuses on the current approved MTFP.  At this stage, no 
additional financial years have been added and no additional budget demand 
items have been included.  The review simply updates the current MTFP in 
light of the estimated financial impact of Covid-19.

8. Current Approved Medium Term Financial Plan

8.1 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which set out the Council’s finances 
over a four-year period, namely 2020/21 to 2023/24 was formally approved in 
February 2020.  A balanced budget for 2020/21 was presented, providing for a 
net general fund budget of £10,902,470 and a net HRA budget of £15,000,350

8.2 A new financial year (2023/24) was added to the MTFP and the overall 
financial assumptions were updated for the four years. This resulted in a small 
surplus position of £127,080 on the General Fund by the end of 2023/24. An 
overall contribution of £17,910 into reserves was forecast during the 4 year life 
of the plan.

8.3 There was also a forecast surplus position of £2,061,950 by the end of 
2023/24 for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and a £0.93million 
contribution into reserves over the 4 years.  The financial forecasts for the 30-
year business plan continued to show a significant surplus. 

8.4 The MTFP also included an updated General Fund Capital Programme of 
£19,401,020 and HRA Capital Programme of £20,295,620 over the period 
2019/20 – 2023/24.

Page 62



8.5 The report did flag the risks around the outcomes of national funding reviews 
(i.e. fair funding; business rates retention; and new homes bonus) which may 
have a detrimental impact on the future financial position.   

8.6 The forecast general fund reserves position over the life of the approved 
MTFP is shown below:-

Contingency 
Reserves

2019/20 
(£)

2020/21 
(£)

2021/22 
(£)

2022/23 
(£)

2023/24 
(£)

Balance at Year End 2,837,990 2,976,280 2,798,700 2,728,820 2,855,900
Minimum Requirement 1.203,000 1,332,000 1,332,000 1,332,000 1,332,000
Headroom 1,634,990 1,644,280 1,466,700 1,396,820 1,523,900

8.7 HRA balances were forecast to total 16.3million at the end of 2019/20.

8.8 A summary of the approved four year revenue position for the General Fund 
and HRA is shown in ANNEX A.

9. Coronavirus Pandemic – 2020/21 Impact

9.1 As a priority, the financial impact that Covid-19 would have on the current 
financial year (2020/21) was reviewed in June 2020.  This has now been 
updated as part of the Quarter 1 Financial Report, which also takes account of 
the confirmed and estimated future Government funding.

2020/21 Financial risk Assessment

9.2 A ‘Finance and Performance Impact of COVID-19’ Report was presented to 
Members on 4th June 2020.  The report attempted to forecast the impact that 
COVID-19 will have on the financial position and performance of the Council in 
2020/21.

9.3 In terms of the estimated impact on the 2020/21 financial position, a risk matrix 
was completed which listed potential financial risks – which were rated 
dependent on current status:- 

Rating Description
IMPACT EMERGING Costs already being incurred

IMPACT LIKELY Costs likely to occur – as yet unidentified

POTENTIAL RISK Remains a risk – not emerged to date

9.4 Each risk was then reviewed and an attempt made at forecasting the financial 
impact (where possible) - an ‘impact range’ of LOW – MEDIUM - HIGH was 
applied taking into account length of lockdown and recovery period

9.5 The estimated financial impact of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 budget position 
was presented as below:

Page 63



IMPACT RANGEHPBC - GF
LOW MEDIUM HIGH

IMPACT EMERGING                     646,405                 964,463          1,516,740 

IMPACT LIKELY                     332,870                 566,465             851,173 

POTENTIAL RISK 72,765                 191,062             472,648 

TOTAL                1,052,040              1,721,990          2,840,561 

IMPACT RANGEHPBC - HRA
LOW MEDIUM HIGH

IMPACT EMERGING                     4,320                      6,320                   8,320 

IMPACT LIKELY (33,400) 13,200 84,800

POTENTIAL RISK                  82,500                  132,000                198,000 

TOTAL 53,420                  151,520                291,120 

Quarter 1 Financial Update

9.6 The 2020/21 forecast has been updated as part of the Quarter 1 financial 
update (see separate report on this agenda).  

9.7 In summary, the Quarter 1 financial update forecasts a £460,000 General 
Fund deficit for 2020/21 after taking into account Covid-19 related funding.  
The deficit is mainly due to the impact from losses in fees and charges 
income, additional costs in supporting the operation of the leisure centres, 
waste collection, additional cleaning and a potential shortfall in realising 
efficiency savings.

9.8 When establishing the 2020/21 budget, it included a contribution into general 
fund contingency reserves of £0.14million.  Therefore, the forecast deficit 
position results in a variance to this assumption of £0.46 million – with an 
overall £0.32 million use of reserves. 

9.9 However, at the end of 2019/20, the Council established a Covid-19 
earmarked reserve specifically to support with the financial impact of Covid-19 
totalling £200,000 - utilising part of the 2019/20 underspend generated.

9.10 Therefore, this reserve will be used to partially fund any 2020/21 in year 
deficit.  Based on the quarter 1 projection, the full £200,000 would be drawn.

9.11 The Quarter 1 financial update projects a £0.749million underspend against 
the 2020/21 HRA budget (largely as a result of a delay in the delivery of the 
capital programme), and is showing no significant adverse financial impact of 
Covid-19 in terms of loss of income/additional costs as yet.

Page 64



9.12 The 2020/21 financial position will be monitored and updated throughout the 
year taking into account the actual recovery of income levels and services and 
any further updates on Government funding.

Government Covid-19 Funding

9.13 On 2nd July 2020, the Secretary of State for the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) announced a package of 
financial support for local government, providing three central pillars of 
support:

COVID-19 related expenditure
- An overall £4.3 billion non ring-fenced allocation.  The Council has so far 

received three allocations of non-ringfenced funding from Government 
totalling £1,096,350.  The allocations reflect the factors from which the 
MHCLG monthly data returns (as completed by each Local Authority) 
correlate most closely with expenditure.  The allocations also take account 
of population, deprivation and the way that service costs vary across the 
country.

- A further £170,000 towards the additional costs of the administration of the 
business grants process.  

Irrecoverable income loss
- Recognises that Councils have lost a great deal of income from sales, 

fees and charges (SFC) since the start of the pandemic.
- Reimbursements of lost income where these losses are more than 5% of 

planned income - Government will fund 75p in every pound.  The income 
scheme will cover transactional income from the delivery of services which 
is unavoidably irrecoverable – this will be the net loss. The 5% deductible 
will be based on total SFC’s budgets - it is not a line by line analysis. No 
forms of commercial income will be covered by this scheme.  

Losses in tax revenue
- Tax deficits can be repaid over three years rather than the usual one
- There is uncertainty at this point how much tax loss will materialise, so the 

government will agree a fair apportionment of irrecoverable council tax and 
business rates losses, between central and local government, for 2020 to 
2021.

Page 65



9.14 The table below provides a summary of Government funding (confirmed and 
estimated) 

Covid Grant Support HPBC
  £ 
Covid 19 General Support- Phase 1          41,700 
Covid 19 General Support- Phase 2        918,183 
Covid 19 General Support- Phase 3        136,467 
Covid 19 Grants Admin Support        170,000 
Covid 19 Income Loss Support (est)        280,020 

General Support     1,546,370 
Covid 19 Track & Trace (via County) 50,000 
Covid 19 Rough Sleepers Initiative           1,650 

Service Specific Support          51,650 

Total  
      

1,598,020 

9.15 The 2020/21 position will be monitored regularly and formally reported to 
Members as part of the usual quarterly financial reporting process.   Finance 
will be working with Services on a monthly basis to assess the 2020/21 
position.

10. Coronavirus Pandemic - Medium Term Financial Plan Impact

10.1 Whilst the Council appears to be in a position to offset the majority of the 
impact of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 budget via Government funding and use 
of reserves, there is concern about the longer-term financial impact this will 
have on the delivery of corporate plan objectives.  

10.2 Therefore, a review of the current MTFP has been undertaken to estimate any 
significant changes to the 4 year forecast as a result of the impact of Covid-19.  
The following sections of this report will focus on the four key areas which form 
part of the MTFP:

 Transformation Programme
 Financial Forecasts
 Funding & Income Generation
 Risks, Contingencies & Reserves

11. Transformation Programme

11.1 The key areas of review within the Transformation programme include:-
 Reprofiling of Capital Programme forecasts
 Update of land disposal forecasts – time line and estimated values
 Treasury management implications of capital programme and economic 

changes
 Review of current Efficiency plan – remaining savings profile and any 

potential reversal of savings already achieved
 Impact on major contracts 

11.2 The table below details the changes made as a result of Covid-19 and 
assumptions that have been taken in making those changes:-

Page 66



Transformation 
Programme

Covid-19 Changes / Assumptions Financial Impact (£’000’s)

Capital 
Programme – 
General Fund

The General Fund capital programme has been 
reviewed to understand the impact Covid-19 has 
had on delivery of the approved programme.  Some 
projects have inevitably been delayed due to the 
lockdown period, social distancing measures and 
contractor availability.
Consequently the capital programme has been re-
profiled.   Overall capital expenditure over the four 
year period has decreased by (£955,480) after 
taking account of the approved carry forward of 
£385,670 from 2019/20,   The majority of the 
variance relates  to (£953,190) fleet acquisitions 
rolled forward  into 2024/25.  The updated general 
fund capital programme, with a comparison to the 
programme approved in February 2020 is detailed 
in ANNEX B

CAPITAL SPEND IMPACT:
Year 1 decrease (£1,850,560)
Year 2 decrease (£1,218,640)
Year 3 increase £1,965,880
Year 4 increase £147,840

Capital 
Programme - 
HRA

The HRA capital programme has been reviewed to 
understand the impact Covid-19 has had on 
delivery of the approved programme.  Some 
projects have inevitably been delayed due to the 
lockdown period, social distancing measures and 
contractor availability.
Consequently the capital programme has been re-
profiled.  Overall capital expenditure over the four 
year period has actually increased by £708,000 
after taking into account the approved carry forward 
of £120,000 from 2019/20. The variance consists of 
£300,000 additional budget for the Gamesley 
Cladding scheme; an additional £90,000 to support 
the purchase of repairs vehicles; an additional 
£280,000 for a new scheme to upgrade fire alarm 
systems in various sheltered blocks; other minor 
projected outturn variances £38,000 
The updated HRA capital programme, with a 
comparison to the programme approved in 
February 2020 is detailed in ANNEX B

CAPITAL SPEND IMPACT:
Year 1 decrease (£765,150)  
Year 2  increase £1,278,150 
Year 3 increase  £195,000
Year 4 no impact

Capital 
Programme 
Funding

In light of Covid-19, the capital receipts forecast 
from the Land Disposal Strategy have been 
reviewed to incorporate any delays in realisation. At 
this stage, no significant changes to the value of 
receipts has been included, as it is still too early to 
understand the impact the pandemic and 
subsequent recession may have on land values.  
As a result of re-profiling, less receipts are forecast 
in 2020/21 and 2021/22 offset by increased levels 
in the last two years.  Overall due to the reduction 
in General Fund capital expenditure in 2020/21 and 
2021/22, (£335,350) fewer capital receipts are 
required to support funding.
The HRA capital programme is fully funded from 
reserves.

Capital Funding Impact on 
External Borrowing
Year 1 decrease (£1,071,880)
Year 2 increase £512,930
Year 3 nil impact
Year 4 decrease  (£21,250)

Overall reduction of 
(£580,200) 

Page 67



The changes made to the capital programmes have 
resulted in a reduction of (£580,220) in external 
borrowing requirements over the next four years; 
with nil borrowing forecast in years 2022/23 & 
2023/24 
 

Treasury 
Management 
implications of 
capital 
programme 
changes 

The treasury management implications have also 
been updated to take account of both the re-
profiled capital programme and land disposal 
programme.

Consequently, borrowing costs have reduced due 
to slippage in the capital programme and overall 
reduced borrowing requirement.  Year 1 (2020/21) 
remains unchanged at this point as the majority of 
the borrowing costs budget relates to the borrowing 
requirement from previous years.

REVENUE SPEND IMPACT
Year 1  no impact
Year 2  £4,260 decrease
Year 3  £27,930 decrease
Year 4  £46,200 decrease

Efficiency 
Programme 
Review

When setting the MTFP in February, there 
remained a £0.505 million savings target to be 
achieved in 2020/21.  Following additional savings 
that were realised in quarter 4 of 2019/20, the 
overall target remaining has been reduced to 
£352,000 (£257,000 targeted in 2020/21, £95,000 
targeted in 2021/22)
At quarter 1 stage, it is assumed that the 2020/21 
target of £257,000 will not be achieved due to 
Covid-19 pressures (this will be monitored during 
the year) – which is built into the projected outturn 
of a £460,000 deficit.  
It is proposed that the Covid-19 recovery 
earmarked reserve will partially fund the estimated 
shortfall in 2020/21. 
At this stage it is proposed to move the 2020/21 
target into 2021/22, resulting in a savings target in 
2021/22 of £352,000. 
The Covid-19 recovery phase and impact on the 
Council’s financial position is forecast at this stage 
to continue into 2021/22 (if not longer).  Therefore it 
is recognised that there is a risk that the 
£0.35million saving target in 2021/22 may not be 
fully met.  However, there are significant savings 
planned for realisation in the next 12 months in 
regard to fleet procurement.
In addition, the Council has an earmarked reserve 
established to support with any re-profiling 
requirements of the efficiency programme with 
£200,000 currently set aside.  Therefore, if there 
was a shortfall in achieving savings in 2021/22, this 
reserve could be drawn

REVENUE IMPACT
Year 1  £257,000 shortfall
Year 2  (£257,000) increase
Year 3 no impact
Year 4 no impact

Page 68



Major Contracts One of the major cost pressures as a result of 
Covid-19 has been the impact on some of the 
Council’s major contracts.

Leisure Centres & Pavilion Gardens
Financial support has been provided in regard to 
the Council’s leisure centres and Pavilion Gardens 
operation during the lockdown and recovery period 
– which at this stage is assumed to be until the end 
of 2020/21.  The leisure centre operation has seen 
income receipts wiped out during the period the 
centres were closed and is forecasting slow 
recovery phase as footfall is reduced in the early 
stages of recovery to maintain social distancing 
and facilities are opened on a phased basis. An 
estimated £628,000 spend pressure is currently 
assumed in 2020/21. 
Recognising that recovery may be prolonged and 
income levels may not reach pre-Covid levels in the 
near future, a £340,000 growth item has been built 
into the MTFP in 2021/22 – but then removed from 
2022/23.
Alliance Environmental Services
The Council owned company has experienced cost 
pressures in regard to additional agency and 
overtime costs to enable social distancing and 
additional cleaning and personal protective 
equipment – this is forecast at an additional 
£200,000 in 2020/21 and £50,000 in 2021/22.  
Facilities Management
Enhanced cleaning regimes have been put into 
place in public buildings and public conveniences, 
increasing costs in 2020/21 by approximately 
£25,000.  This is assumed to continue into 
2021/22.

REVENUE SPEND IMPACT
Year 1  £854,000 increase
Year 2  £410,000 increase
Year 3 no impact
Year 4 no impact

12. Financial Forecasts

12.1 A review of financial forecasts includes:-
 Updated interest rate forecasts
 Updated inflationary projections
 Any pensions impact relating to economic changes
 Estimation of any additional medium term costs of COVID recovery:

- Reinstating Services
- Economic recovery
- Community recovery

 Potential financial savings developing from new ways of working in 
accordance with recovery plan stream:-
- Taking advantage of the positive legacy

12.2 The table below details the changes made as a result of Covid-19 and 
assumptions that have been taken in making those changes:-

Page 69



Financial 
Forecasts

Covid-19 Changes / Assumptions Financial Impact (£’000’s)

Interest 
Rates

When setting the MTFP in February, it was assumed 
that interest rates would be increasing to 1.00% in 
the quarter ending March 2021 with no further 
increases until June 2022. However, the Bank of 
England reduced the base rate in March 2020 to 
0.1%
This took into account the known situation with 
regard to coronavirus at the time and its potential 
impact on economies around the world. The 
Council’s Treasury advisors have updated their 
forecast to assume the base rate will remain at this 
level for 2 years.
Consequently the cost of borrowing and the return 
on cash investments has reduced.

GENERAL FUND REVENUE 
NET INCOME IMPACT:
Year 1  £61,280 decrease
Year 2  £108,720 decrease
Year 3  £196,810 decrease
Year 4  £218,420 decrease

HRA IMPACT
Year 1  no impact
Year 2  £14,980 decrease
Year 3  £42,760 decrease
Year 4  £16,850 decrease

Inflation The inflationary effects of Covid-safe working 
arrangements will feed through the system as 
increased supplies and service costs as contracts 
are renewed and uplifted.

REVENUE SPEND IMPACT:
Year 1  £20,000 increase
Year 2  £30,000 increase
Year 3  no further impact
Year 4  no further impact

Pensions The impacts of Covid19 are not expected to have an 
effect on pension contribution rates at this stage. 
The Fund was revalued in 2019 and is not due 
another formal revaluation until 2022. The long term 
nature of Pension Fund forecasting means the 
impacts of short term financial shocks are mitigated. 
This situation will continue to be monitored following 
the outcome of this next valuation.

The Council carries an earmarked reserve for 
Pension purposes, which was originally set up to 
meet extraordinary pension costs outside of the 
actuarial valuation process. It has become obsolete 
having never been used for this purpose and is 
potentially available for re-designation. This will be 
reviewed alongside all other earmarked reserves 
and Third Party funds.

No impact assumed

Additional 
cost 
pressures of 
Covid-19

In addition to the more significant areas of additional 
spend pressures, there are other service areas that 
are seeing additional cost pressures.  For example, 
Homelessness and additional costs incurred in 
providing teleconferencing / video conferencing 
facilities and overtime associated with undertaking 
extended duties and dealing with backlogs of work.

Whilst these pressures are being seen in 2020/21, it 
is difficult to forecast if this will continue or even 
increase into future years as the impact of recession 
is seen within the Borough.
Therefore at this stage, no additional cost pressures 
are included in year 2 – 4 of the MTFP.  This will be 
reviewed later in the year.

GENERAL FUND REVENUE 
SPEND IMPACT:
Year 1  £50,000
Year 2  no impact
Year 3  no impact
Year 4  no impact

HRA IMPACT
Year 1  £25,000
Year 2  no impact
Year 3  no impact
Year 4  no impact

Page 70



Potential 
Savings 
arising from 
Covid 
recovery

There have been some savings developing during 
2020/21 as a result of the lockdown restrictions that 
were imposed.  Travel costs, utilities, reduced 
postage and print and reduced general expenditure 
(through stalled projects) have generated to offset 
some of the financial pressures being incurred.
The ‘taking advantage of the positive legacy’ work 
stream of the Covid-19 Recovery project will focus 
on how some of the benefits can be embedded 
going forward.   
Any financial savings realised as a result of this will 
be offset against the remaining efficiency 
programme targets.

REVENUE INCOME 
IMPACT:
Year 1  (£50,000)
Year 2  no impact
Year 3  no impact
Year 4  no impact

Any savings delivered, to 
be realised against the 
Efficiency Programme.

13. Funding & Income Generation

13.1 The key areas of funding and income generation include:
 Council Tax, Business Rates and Housing Rents collection 
 Impact on the Collection Fund
 Income from Government Grants
 Longer term impact on fees and charges income

13.2 The table below details the changes made as a result of Covid-19 and 
assumptions that have been taken in making those changes:-

Funding & 
Income 

Generation

Covid-19 Changes / Assumptions Financial Impact 
(£’000’s)

Council Tax The Government announced that it will extend the period 
over which Councils must manage shortfalls in Council 
Tax income relating to 2020/21, compared to expected 
levels from the usual one year to three years.  This is 
intended to ease immediate pressures on Councils when 
budget setting for 2021/22, protecting their ability to 
deliver essential local services.   The Council has seen a 
significant increase in the volume of Local Council Tax 
Support applications, which reduces the collectable 
Council Tax creating a Collection Fund deficit.  However, 
the increase in empty property premium implemented 
from April 2020, has offset some of this impact.
There is also a risk associated with non-payment, with 
some households potentially struggling to meet 
instalments. Collection Rates for 2020/21 are behind 
what they normally are, however this is currently largely 
distorted by deferred payment plans and stalled 
recovery.  
Having said that, it is recognised that there will be an 
impact on collection rates in 2020/21.  However, the 
financial impact will only be realised if outstanding debts 
are not collected in the near term and are subsequently 
written off.  This will be considered in future iterations.

REVENUE INCOME 
IMPACT:
Year 1  no impact
Year 2  £60,000 decrease
Year 3  £60,000 decrease
Year 4  £60,000 decrease

There is an overall 
£180,000 forecast 
increase in the 
Collection Fund deficit 
as a result of Covid-19 
on the 2020/21 position - 
to be charged over a 3 
year period

Page 71



Business 
Rates

Extended Retail Relief was announced by Government in 
March 2020 which awarded full Business Rates relief to 
all retail, hospitality and leisure related businesses. It is 
unknown at this stage if the extended Retail Relief will 
continue into 2021/22.  Either way, the Council would 
either be reimbursed via Government grant or the 
amount would be collectable from businesses.
However, as a result of Covid-19 and the impact 
recession and social distancing measures are having on 
businesses, there is a risk that the Borough may see a 
reduction in the business tax base and therefore 
business rates retention
No assumptions on a reduced business rates base have 
been included in this version of the MTFP, this will be 
considered at the next iteration.
There is also a risk associated with non-payment, with 
businesses potentially struggling to meet instalments.  
Collection Rates for 2020/21 are behind what they 
normally are, however this is currently largely distorted 
by deferred / changed payments plans and stalled 
recovery.  

Having said that, it is recognised that there will be an 
impact on collection rates in 2020/21.  However, the 
financial impact will only be realised if outstanding debts 
are not collected in the near term and are subsequently 
written off.  This will be considered in future iterations.

REVENUE INCOME 
IMPACT:
Year 1  no impact
Year 2  £1,091,000*
Year 3  £1,091,000*
Year 4  £1,091,000*

*There is an overall 
£3,273,000 forecast 
increase in the 
Collection Fund deficit 
as a result of the 
extension to Retail Relief 
- to be charged over a 3 
year period.  The deficit 
is to be funded from 
upfront Government 
funding received in 
2020/21 to cover the 
extended reliefs.

Housing 
Rent

The collection of rent income has not been too adversely 
affected; the level of arrears has remained fairly stable 
during the first quarter with the main impact being a small 
rent loss of £9,500 due to the inability to assign tenancies 
during the lock down period. 

REVENUE INCOME 
IMPACT:
Year 1  £9,500 decrease
Year 2  no impact
Year 3  no impact
Year 4  no impact

Government 
Grants

The Council has received Government funding towards 
Covid-19 pressures during 2020/21.  This has included 
non-ringfenced grants, specific grants (for additional 
services provided such as the administration of the 
grants process) and partial reimbursement of 
irrecoverable fees and charges income.

It is assumed at this stage that this funding will not 
continue into future years

REVENUE INCOME 
IMPACT:
Year 1 £1,546,180 increase
Year 2  no impact
Year 3  no impact
Year 4  no impact

Fees & 
Charges

The assumed annual increase in base income has been 
suspended for years 2 and 3 of the plan, whilst fees and 
charges income levels recover from the Covid19 shock.
The MTFP has been updated to reflect anticipated 
income losses being suffered in 2020/21 arising out of 
the Covid19 outbreak. 
The service areas affected include car parking, planning, 
markets, summons, trade waste, pest control. The MTFP 
anticipates recovery of these income levels over years 2 
and 3 of the Plan. By year 4 it is assumed that income 
levels will be back at pre-Covid19 levels.

REVENUE INCOME 
IMPACT:
Year 1  no impact
Year 2  £40,000 decrease
Year 3  £40,000 decrease
Year 4  no impact

Year 1 £1,035,890 decrease
Year 2 £950,960 increase
Year 3  £50,000 increase
Year 4  no impact

Page 72



14. Updated Revenue Position

14.1 Based on the above updated forecasts, the updated revenue forecast for both 
the general fund and HRA is summarised below.

General Fund Revenue Summary

General Fund 2020/21  
Projection

2021/22  
Projection

2022/23  
Projection

2023/24  
Projection

 £ £ £ £
Employees 10,599,460 10,784,110 11,010,610 11,234,790
Premises 4,274,230 4,322,520 4,388,380 4,455,340
Transport 404,900 408,120 413,220 418,380
Supplies & Services 10,263,840 10,029,700 9,742,890 9,889,850
Benefits          82,460          82,460          82,460         82,460
Borrowing 1,837,940 1,793,930 1,818,490 1,849,190
Parish Grant re Council Tax Support 51,320 51,320 51,320 51,320
Financing Costs 22,130 22,130 22,130 22,130
Total Expenditure 27,536,280 27,494,290 27,529,500 28,003,460
     
Fees and Charges / Other Income   (5,928,220)   (6,923,880)  (7,053,080)   (7,093,080)
Interest Receipts      (160,000)        (61,700)        (59,200)       (82,370)
HRA Recharges   (8,027,720)   (8,202,660)  (8,382,800)   (8,562,770)
Capital Recharges      (231,240)      (231,240)     (231,240)      (231,240)
Net Expenditure 13,189,100 12,074,810 11,803,180 12,034,000
     

Council Tax   (6,051,540)   (6,230,240)   (6,409,480)   (6,595,350)
Revenue Support Grant   (1,546,180) -                 - -
Business Rates Retention   (3,797,710)   (3,895,340)   (4,014,280)   (4,157,700)
New Homes Bonus      (647,250)      (647,250)      (647,250)      (647,250)
Contribution to / (use of) Reserves        (88,940)          (1,640)          (1,640)         (1,640)
Contribution to / (use of) Balances - - - -
Collection Fund      (455,320)          24,730          23,060         23,750
Total Financing (12,586,940) (10,749,740) (11,049,590) (11,378,190)
     
Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)        602,160     1,325,070        753,590        655,810
Efficiency Requirement (cumulative)      (142,680)      (494,680)      (494,680)      (494,680)
Deficit / (Surplus)        459,480        830,390        258,910        161,130
     
Cumulative Deficit (call on reserves)        459,480     1,289,870     1,548,780     1,709,910
     

14.2 The MTFP approved in February 2020 included an assumed £17,910 
contribution into reserves over the four year life of the Plan.  In order to 
balance the updated MTFP position, there would now need to be an overall 
£1,709,910 use of reserves

Page 73



Housing Revenue Account Summary

HRA 2020/21 
Projection

2021/22 
Projection

2022/23 
Projection

2023/24 
Projection

 £ £ £ £
Repairs &  Maintenance 4,314,020 4,395,830 4,494,570 4,593,550
Supervision & Management 2,627,450 2,676,560 2,736,960 2,796,950
Rent, Rates, Taxes & Other Charges 113,030 113,030 113,030 113,030
Other Operating Expenditure 761,310 784,150 808,040 831,980
Depreciation & Impairment Charges 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030
Interest & Debt Management Charges 2,746,340 2,724,540 2,715,870 2,688,300
HRA Contribution to Capital Programme 2,532,910 3,574,180 3,252,570 666,030
Total Expenditure 15,194,090 16,367,320 16,220,070 13,788,870

Dwelling Rents (14,370,910) (14,654,780) (14,943,860) (15,238,230)
Non-Dwelling Rents & Other Income (629,440) (629,440) (629,440) (629,440)
Total Income (15,000,350) (15,284,220) (15,573,300) (15,867,670)

(Surplus) / Deficit for year 193,740 1,083,100 646,770 (2,078,800)

Cumulative (contribution to) / use of reserves 193,740 1,276,840 1,923,610 (155,190)

14.3  The MTFP approved in February 2020 included an assumed £932,620 
contribution into HRA reserves over the four year life of the Plan.  In order to 
balance the updated MTFP position, there would now be a reduced 
contribution into reserves of £155,190.

15. Risks, Contingencies & Use of Reserves

15.1 When setting the Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan in February 2020, 
the general fund contingency reserves balance as at 31st March 2020 was 
estimated to total £2.838 million.

15.2 The 2019/20 provisional outturn position highlighted a £295,000 surplus – of 
which £200,000 was set aside specifically to fund COVID-19 recovery 
activities.  After other earmarked reserves movements, the general fund 
contingency balance as at 31st March 2020 was £2.841million (just slightly 
higher than forecast in the MTFP presented in February).  

15.3 The Council carries reserves as a contingency for situations where risks 
cannot be fully mitigated. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 
requires the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) to report on the robustness of the 
estimates included in the budget and the adequacy of the reserves that the 
budget provides.

15.4 While there is no detailed guidance on calculating the level of general 
reserves, the Council is encouraged to take into account the strategic, 
operational and financial risks facing the Council. These amounts are then 
moderated to acknowledge the likelihood of all risk events occurring together.  
When setting the Budget in February, the minimum level of general fund 
contingency reserves required was set at £1,332,000

Page 74



15.5 In additional to utilising the £0.2million COVID-19 earmarked reserve (and 
proposed re-designation of the £0.220million Pensions earmarked reserve) in 
offsetting the impact in the current financial year, the Council could utilise 
contingency reserves of approximately £1.5 million, which would leave the 
contingency balance just above the minimum required amount of £1.3 million 
over the life of the current MTFP.   

15.6 The updated MTFP currently shows a forecast cumulative deficit position of 
£1.710million over the four years – which represents the required use of 
reserves in order to balance the 4 year plan.    Utilising the Covid-19 recovery 
reserve and potential re-designation of the Pension reserves (as discussed in 
para. 12.2) would leave £1.290 million to be funded from General Fund 
Contingency reserves:

£
MTFP Four Year Use of Reserves requirement 1,709,910
Covid-19 Recovery earmarked Reserve (200,000)
Pensions Re-designated Reserve (220,000)
Balance to be funded 1,289,910
General Fund Contingency (1,289,910)
Balance to be funded 0
General Fund Contingency Balance 31st March 2020 2,841,000
Drawdown over 2020/21 – 2023/24 (1,289,910)
Forecast General Fund Contingency Balance by 31st March 2024 1,551,090
Forecast General Fund Contingency Balance by 31st March 2024 as at Feb 2020 2,855,900

15.7 At the end of year 4 of the plan (2023/24) there would be an estimated 
balance of £1.551million in General Fund Contingency reserves – which would 
be £0.219 million above the required £1.3 million minimum balance.

15.8 The updated MTFP illustrates a requirement to draw from reserves in year 4 of 
the plan (2023/24) whereas the position at February 2020 was a surplus 
position at that stage.  At the next iteration of the MTFP, an additional year will 
be added to the plan to understand if the Council is back to a balanced budget 
position at that point

15.9 If reserves are utilised as forecast to fund the deficit position, a plan would 
need to be put into place in to rebuild reserves over the longer term.

15.10 In terms of the HRA, the financial impact of COVID-19 is expected to be less 
severe, and the HRA has sufficient reserves to cover this certainly in the 
medium term. There may be a longer term impact on the HRA business plan 
which will be considered as part of the MTFP update to be presented in 
February 2021.  The anticipated change in the reserves position as at the end 
of year 4 of the Plan is illustrated below:

Page 75



HRA Reserves
2023/24 

Projection
 £
MTFP Feb 2020 - forecast reserves at period end 31st March 2024 17,310,904
MTFP September 2020 – forecast reserves at 31st March 2024 16,619,244
Potential Reduction in Reserves Balance 691,660

Represented by:
Net additional expenditure 777,430
Additional contribution to Reserves from 2019/20 Outturn Position* (85,770)
Net Reduction 691,660

*not anticipated at Budget setting in Feb 2020

15.11 The updated HRA MTFP illustrates a surplus position of £2.08million by year 
4, very similar to the MTFP presented in February – which showed a 
£2.06million surplus in year 4

15.12 All of the above is subject to the assumptions as detailed in sections 11-13 
which is extremely difficult to forecast – and does not assume any further 
Government support.  These assumptions will be continually monitored.

Risk Identification and Management

15.13 The early identification and management of risks is critical to the Medium 
Term Financial Planning process. Risks are assessed, mitigated and actively 
managed to ensure that the Council delivers its services effectively within the 
funding at its disposal. The principal risks to the Medium Term Financial Plan 
are summarised in ANNEX C.

15.14 Risk areas will be closely monitored and reviewed on an on-going basis and 
remedial action taken as appropriate.  Risks associated with specific projects 
will be identified within the project methodology documents and reviewed 
monthly by the Transformation Board.

15.15 The table below highlights specific financial risks that are embedded within the 
Medium Term Financial Plan: 

Revenue Risks Capital Risks
 Inflationary assumptions
 Interest rates
 Revenue consequences of capital
 Housing benefits
 Fees and charges
 Universal Credit
 Business Rates Retention scheme
 Council Tax collection
 Housing Rent
 New Homes Bonus
 Financial benefits from partnerships / 

shared services
 Pension costs
 Insurance costs
 Waste management costs
 Brexit implications

 Interest rates 
 External funding
 Capital receipts
 Capacity to deliver capital 

programme
 Project overspend
 Project overrun
 External factors (e.g. planning 

objections, judicial reviews etc. 
leading to project delay)

 Suppliers / Contractors / 
Contract Management

 Weather 
 Brexit implications

Page 76



15.16 In addition, there are a number of Covid-19 related financial risks to the MTFP 
to be regularly reviewed and considered:-

 The impact that a recession may have on Council Tax, Business Rates 
and Housing Rent collection and increased risk of non-payment which 
is not subsequently collected

 The period of recovery is prolonged which has further cost pressure 
consequences for the Council – especially in regard to the operation of 
leisure centres

 Fees and Charges income levels do not return to pre-Covid levels as 
forecast

 The economy is deflated post-recovery leading to ongoing economic 
problems in town centres and the broader economy, as well as 
community safety issues, which lead to increased cost pressures

 Increased demand on certain services e.g. Benefits and economic 
support.

 A local or second national lockdown is imposed which leads to further 
pressures on businesses and households and additional costs to the 
Council in providing support

16. Future MTFP Updates

16.1 The next iteration of the MTFP is due towards the end of the calendar year 
and then again alongside the presentation and setting of the Budget 2021/22 
in February 2021.

16.2 The forecasts will be updated to reflect latest information, intelligence and 
monthly in year actuals and an additional year will be added to the plan.  In 
year financial performance will be closely monitored within the quarterly 
financial reports.

Page 77



ANNEX A

Approved General Fund Revenue Budget (approved February 2020)

Budget Heading
2020/21  

Projection
2021/22  

Projection
2022/23  

Projection
2023/24  

Projection
 £ £ £ £
Employees 10,599,460 10,784,110 11,010,610 11,234,790
Premises 4,274,230 4,322,520 4,388,380 4,455,340
Transport 404,900 408,120 413,220 418,380
Supplies & Services 9,412,780 9,516,280 9,665,170 9,812,130
Benefits            82,460          82,460          82,460         82,460
Borrowing 1,837,940 1,905,240 1,900,580 1,860,010
Parish Grant re Council Tax Support 51,320 51,320 51,320 51,320
Financing Costs 22,130 22,130 22,130 22,130
     
Total Expenditure 26,685,220 27,092,180 27,533,870 27,936,560
     
Fees and Charges / Other Income      (6,964,110)   (7,048,810)    (7,168,010)   (7,208,010)
Interest Receipts         (160,000)      (207,500)       (255,000)      (302,500)
HRA Recharges      (8,027,720)   (8,202,660)    (8,382,800)   (8,562,770)
Capital Recharges         (231,240)      (231,240)       (231,240)      (231,240)
     
Net Expenditure 11,302,150 11,401,970 11,496,820 11,632,040
     
Council Tax      (6,051,540)   (6,230,240)    (6,409,480)   (6,595,350)
Revenue Support Grant                    0                  0                  0                 0
Business Rates Retention      (3,797,710)   (3,871,870)    (3,990,210)   (4,137,210)
New Homes Bonus         (647,250)      (647,250)       (647,250)      (647,250)
Contribution to / (use of) Reserves          (88,940)          (1,640)          (1,640)         (1,640)
Contribution to / (use of) Balances           138,290      (177,580)        (69,880)        127,080
Collection Fund         (455,320)        (35,410)        (37,080)       (36,390)
     

Total Financing    (10,902,470)
 

(10,963,990)  (11,155,540) (11,290,760)
     
Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)           399,680        437,980         341,280        341,280
     
Efficiency Requirement (cumulative)         (399,680)      (437,980)       (341,280)      (341,280)
     
Deficit / (Surplus)                    0                  0                  0                 0
     

Page 78



Approved Housing Revenue Budget (approved February 2020)

2020/21 
Projection

2021/22 
Projection

2022/23 
Projection

2023/24 
Projection

 £ £ £ £
Repairs &  Maintenance 4,299,300 4,395,830 4,494,570 4,593,550
Supervision & Management 2,618,150 2,676,560 2,736,960 2,796,950
Rent, Rates, Taxes & Other 
Charges 113,030 113,030 113,030 113,030
Other Operating Expenditure 761,310 784,150 808,040 831,980
Depreciation & Impairment 
Charges 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030
Interest & Debt Management 
Charges 2,746,340 2,739,520 2,758,630 2,705,150
HRA Contribution to Capital 
Programme 3,178,060 2,296,030 3,057,570 666,030
Total Expenditure 15,815,220 15,104,150 16,067,830 13,805,720

Dwelling Rents (14,370,910) (14,654,780) (14,943,860) (15,238,230)
Non-Dwelling Rents & Other 
Income (629,440) (629,440) (629,440) (629,440)
Total Income (15,000,350) (15,284,220) (15,573,300) (15,867,670)

(Surplus) / Deficit for year 814,870 (180,070) 494,530 (2,061,950)

 

Page 79



ANNEX B

Updated General Fund Capital Programme

Service Area 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Total 
 £ £ £ £ £
Housing 667,000 374,000 504,000 504,000 2,049,000
Asset Management 1,668,340 1,524,690 1,950,820 2,185,120 7,328,970
Housing Grants 519,110 489,110 489,110 489,110 1,986,440
ICT Strategy 118,160 67,050 50,000 50,000 285,210
Fleet Management             -   633,000 725,780 172,000 1,530,780
Other Schemes 213,250 59,040 50,000             -   322,290
Total Revised Programme 3,185,860 3,146,890 3,769,710 3,400,230 13,502,690
Original Programme 5,036,420 4,365,530 1,803,830 3,252,390 14,458,170
Change increase (decrease) (1,850,560) (1,218,640) 1,965,880 147,840 (955,480)
Financed by:-      
External Contributions 519,110 489,110 489,110 489,110 1,986,440
Planning Obligations 43,000             -               -               -   43,000
Capital Receipts(Land)             -   812,180 2,744,100 2,388,370 5,944,650
Capital Receipts( one for one) 667,000 374,000 504,000 504,000 2,049,000
Capital Receipts (Vehicles)             -               -   32,500      18,750 51,250
Capital Reserves 100,000             -               -               -   100,000
Earmarked Reserves 64,450             -               -               -   64,450
Borrowing 1,792,300 1,471,600             -               -   3,263,900
Total   Revised Financing 3,185,860 3,146,890 3,769,710 3,400,230 13,502,690
Original Programme 5,036,420 4,365,530 1,803,830 3,252,390 14,458,170
Change Increase (decrease) (1,850,560) (1,218,640) 1,965,880 147,840 (955,480)

Comparison with February 2020 increase (decrease)
Service Area 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Total 
 £ £ £ £ £
Housing - - - - -
Asset Management (870,530) (1,151,950) 1,362,100 629,270 (31,110)
Housing Grants (31,180) - - - (31,180)
ICT Strategy (17,050) 17,050 - - -
Fleet Management (932,760) (92,780) 553,780 (481,430) (953,190)
Other Schemes 960 9,040 50,000 - 60,000
Total Programme (1,850,560) (1,218,640) 1,965,880 147,840 (955,480)
Financed by:-      
External Contributions (31,180) - - - (31,180)
Planning Obligations 10,000 - - - 10,000
Capital Receipts(Land) (725,000) (1,712,820) 1,933,380 169,090 (335,350)
Capital Receipts( one for one) - - - - -
Capital Receipts (Vehicles) (32,500) (18,750) 32,500 - (18,750)
Capital Reserves - - - - -
Earmarked Reserves - - - - -
Borrowing (1,071,880) 512,930  (21,250) (580,200)
Total  Financing (1,850,560) (1,218,640) 1,965,880 147,840 (955,480)

Page 80



Updated Housing Revenue Accounts Capital Programme 

Service Area 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Total
 £ £ £ £ £
Asset Management Works 4,171,940 4,835,710 4,536,600 2,370,060 15,914,310
Repairs Team Capital Works 270,000 295,000 295,000 295,000 1,155,000
Professional & Commissioning 
Fees 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 400,000
Vehicle Purchasing 90,000 242,500 420,000 - 752,500
Housing IT System - 200,000 - - 200,000
Total Revised Programme 4,631,940 5,673,210 5,351,600 2,765,060 18,421,810
Original Programme* 5,397,090 4,395,060 5,156,600 2,765,060 17,713,810
Change increase (decrease) (765,150) 1,278,150 195,000 - 708,000
      
Financed by:      
HRA Contribution 2,532,910 3,574,180 3,252,570 666,030 10,025,690
Major Repairs Reserve 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030 8,396,120
Total Revised Financing 4,631,940 5,673,210 5,351,600 2,765,060 18,421,810
Original Programme* 5,397,090 4,395,060 5,156,600 2,765,060 17,713,810
Change increase (decrease) (765,150) 1,278,150 195,000 - 708,000
* 2020/21 original programme includes £120,000 approved carry forwards from 2019/20

Comparison with February 2020 increase (decrease)

Service Area 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 Total
 £ £ £ £ £
Asset Management Works (587,650) 1,035,650 195,000 - 643,000
Repairs Team Capital Works (25,000) - - - (25,000)
Professional & Commissioning 
Fees - - - - -
Vehicle Purchasing (152,500) 242,500 - - 90,000
Housing IT System - - - - -
Total  Programme (765,150) 1,278,150 195,000 - 708,000
      
Financed by:      
HRA Contribution (765,150) 1,278,150 195,000 - 708,000
Major Repairs Reserve - - - - -
Total Financing (765,150) 1,278,150 195,000 - 708,000

Page 81



ANNEX C

Medium Term Financial Plan – Principal Risks

Risk Category Risk Mitigation and Controls

Financial 
Implications

Robustness of financial 
assumptions within Efficiency 
and Rationalisation Strategy

Structured project management 
arrangements have been put in place with 
detailed business cases for each initiative – 
these will be strengthened in the service 
review process

Financial 
Implications

Additional financial pressures 
emerge – cost & income 

The strategy is kept under constant review 
and adjustments will be made where 
necessary

Service 
Continuity

Interruptions to key services or 
performance standards

Resource implications and impact are 
identified as part of the business case 
process. Service continuity and 
maintenance of standards of service are 
key requirements of any new proposals

Corporate 
Governance

Maintaining stakeholder 
confidence; lack of clarity on 
accountability

Ongoing review of standards of internal 
control (e.g. Financial Procedure Rules 
reviewed and updated). Internal Audit Plan 
will be reviewed to account for the new 
approach proposed in the efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy

Management of 
Change

Management of corporate and 
local, cultural change; 
behavioural risks; residual 
effects of aggregation; 
proposed changes to 
organisational structure, roles 
& responsibilities

Progress with achievement of aims will be 
monitored through an effective performance 
management structure. Investment has 
been made in a new approach to 
Organisational Development.

People Risks Impact of cultural changes;
assessment of skills; 
recruitment & retention;
capacity issues

Continuing communications process for the 
delivery of transformation programme

Key Projects & 
Partnerships

Managing changes to shared 
service delivery arrangements

The project management methodology 
provides for an adequate transition where 
there are changes in service delivery
  

Page 82



Risk Category Risk Mitigation and Controls

Performance 
Management

Adequacy of framework to 
monitor transition

Risk management processes are 
embedded

Reputation and 
Relationship 
Risks

Maintaining existing partner 
confidence

Continuing communications process for the 
delivery of transformation programme

Programme 
Delivery

Delays in implementation of 
efficiency savings

Effective governance arrangements in place 
to monitor plans. 

Executive Directors and Senior Managers 
own delivery of efficiencies. 

Programme 
Delivery

A number of the efficiency / 
rationalisation initiatives are 
not achieved

Structured project management approach is 
in place for delivery including effective 
exception reporting

The strategy is kept under constant review

Identification of further efficiency / 
rationalisation opportunities through 
benchmarking / effective member working 
groups
  

Political Support Lack of Members support for 
Plan.

Regular reporting and member briefings 
including effective scrutiny arrangements

5.41

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Corporate Select Committee

25th September 2020

TITLE: Revised Performance Framework 2020/21 
due to the impact of COVID-19

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Vanessa Higgins - Information Business 
Partner

WARDS INVOLVED: All

Appendices Attached
Appendix 1: Amended Performance Targets 2020/21

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 This report provides information on the proposed amendments to the current 
performance targets for 2020/21, which have been made necessary due to the 
effects of the coronavirus pandemic on the council’s ability to meet its 
previously agreed targets.

2. Recommendation

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee note the proposed amendments and 
comment accordingly.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Council’s 2019-2023 Performance Framework was considered by 
Corporate Select Committee on 10th February 2020 following detailed scrutiny 
by the Performance Sub-Committee on 3rd February 2020. It contains the 
council’s performance targets for the years 2020/21 through to 2022/23 and 
reflects the ambitions of the 4-year Corporate Plan adopted in October 2019.

3.2 The advent of a national lockdown on 23rd March 2020 had a dramatic effect 
on the Council’s ability to carry out certain functions as previously planned and 
a major impact on the local economy and our communities. It has therefore 
been necessary to review the targets agreed pre-lockdown for 2020/21 and 

Page 85

Agenda Item 7



propose a revised set of targets for the relatively small number of areas 
affected. The usual service planning activity for 2021/22 will follow in due 
course with the involvement of this Committee at the appropriate stage.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The Performance Framework translates the ambitions of the Corporate Plan 
into measurable targeted activity and therefore links to all four of the Council’s 
aims and the supporting objectives.  

5. Alternative Options

5.1 This report is for information only and therefore no alternatives have been 
presented. However, if the target review had not taken place the 2020/21 Q4 
report would no doubt show a higher than usual proportion of ‘off track’ 
measures due to lockdown and on-going coronavirus restrictions, which were 
outside the Council’s control.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
The adoption of revised targets will help ensure that colleagues do not 
become demotivated by now-impossible targets due to external factors 
outside their control

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
None

6.4 Financial Considerations
Several financial metrics have been adversely affected by the pandemic, in 
particular revenue 

6.5 Legal
None

6.6 Climate Change
There are no implications from this report although it is hoped that there will 
be some positive legacy aspects from lockdown in terms of reduced 
business co2 emissions from employee transport

6.7 Consultation
All Heads of Service have been fully engaged in the process of reviewing 
their 2020/21 targets in response to lockdown 

Page 86



6.8 Risk Assessment
The impact of lockdown on the council’s risk profile was the subject of an 
Information Digest Report to Audit & Regulatory Committee in June 2020

ANDREW P STOKES
Acting Chief Executive 

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Performance Framework 2020-2023 Vanessa Higgins
Information Business Partner
vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk

6.4

Page 87



7. Detail

7.1 The Council’s 2019/2023 Performance Framework was considered by 
Corporate Select Committee on 10th February 2020 following detailed scrutiny 
by the Performance Sub-Committee on 3rd February 2020. It contains the 
Council’s performance targets for the years 2020/21 through to 2022/23 and 
reflects the ambitions of the 4-year Corporate Plan adopted in October 2019.

7.2     The advent of a national lockdown on 23rd March 2020 had a dramatic effect 
on the council’s ability to carry out certain functions, particularly where access 
to premises was involved such as regulatory inspections and housing repairs. 
It also had a major impact on the High Peak economy and the health and 
wealth of its communities. It has therefore been necessary to review the 
2020/21 targets agreed pre-lockdown and propose a revised set of targets for 
the relatively small but significant number of areas affected. 

7.3 Of the 152 performance indicators in the previously agreed framework for 
2020-21, a fifth are now subject to revised targets as a result of this review. 
The social media reach targets have been increased as the number of 
followers grew during lockdown. The remainder of performance measures are 
largely unaffected or measure contextual data only. 

7.4 The usual service planning activity for 2021/22 to 2023/24 will follow in the 
New Year with the involvement of this Committee at the appropriate stage.

Page 88



Covid 19 target review 

Appendix 1: Amended Performance Targets 2020/21

High Peak Performance Framework 2020/21: Amended 

P
age 89



Covid 19 target review 

Aim 1: Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner High Peak
Measure Reported 2019-20 

Target
2019-20 
Result 

2020-21
Target

Revised
Target 

Objective: Fit for purpose housing that meets the needs of tenants and residents

NEW: % of initial homelessness applications 
opened at the prevention and relief duty 

stages

Monthly NEW 44%:56%
May 2020

65%:35% 60%: 40%

NEW: Number of TA placements ( including  
B&B made for families ) placed over 6 weeks

Monthly NEW 22 (1 family)
May 2020

0 5

% of gas safety checks overdue Monthly 0 0 2019-20
0 May 2020

0 <1%

% of active housing register applicants in 
priority need (classes A and B) who have 

been registered in excess of 6 months 

Annual 15% 13.19% 15% 30%

NEW: Average time from request to repair 
by priority 

Monthly NEW NEW
P1's - 0.45                    
P2's - 2.76                           
P3's - 1.82                  

P4's - 21.17
May 20

P1 24 hr
P2 7 days

         P3 21 days
P4 112 days

P1 24 hr
P2 10 days
P3 28 days

P4 182 days

Average Number of jobs completed per 
operative per day

Monthly 4.7 4.63 2019-20
3.59 May 2020

4.75 3.75

Objective: Effective provision of high- quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health

Number of community clean-up campaigns Annual 75 82 80 60

P
age 90



Covid 19 target review 

Measure Reported 2019-20 
Target

2019-20 
Result 

2020-21
Target

Revised
Target 

Number of pest control contracts Annual 14 14 16 14

% of 'high risk' premises (A-C) inspected per 
annum

Quarterly 100% 100% 100% 75%

% of routine permitted process premises 
inspected

Quarterly  100% 85% 100% 75%

% food premises compliant with FSA criteria 
(plus numbers as context) 

 Annual 98% 98% 98%  95%

Private water supplies - % of sampling 
programme completed

Annual 100% 100% 100% 75%

P
age 91



Covid 19 target review 

Aim 2: A responsive, smart, financially resilient and forward- thinking council
Measure

 
Reported 2019-20 

Target
2019-20 
Result

2020-21 
Target

Revised 
Target 

Objective: Ensure our future financial resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for money

Collection rates: Business rates Monthly 98.1% 98.39% 2019-20
17% May 2020

98.2% 96%

Collection rates: Council Tax Monthly 98.1% 98.41% 2019-20
19.28% May 2020

98.2% 96.2%

Collection rates: Rent Monthly 98.5% 98.66% 2019-20
89.34% May 2020

98.5% 98%

Collection rates: Sundry Debt (value of SD 
over 60 days old) 

Quarterly 5% 
reduction

£162,980 2% 
reduction 

Match 2019/20

% of procurement activity on the 
Procurement Forward Plan (Joint Alliance 

Measure)

Quarterly 72% 67.38% 65% 60%

% of internal audit recommendations 
implemented within timescale (snapshot of 

year to date)

Quarterly 97.5% 98.08% 98 % 92%

% of corporate efficiency savings met Annual  100% of 
target

90.23% (2018-19) 100% of target 50%

a) Expenditure variance to budget
b) Income variance to budget

(GF)

Annual Net Budget +/- 
5% variance

a) (0.82%) 
(Q3 2019-20)
b) 0.25% 

(Q3 2019-20)

Net Budget +/- 
5% variance

Net Budget +/- 25% 
variance

P
age 92



Covid 19 target review 

Measure
 

Reported 2019-20 
Target

2019-20 
Result

2020-21 
Target

Revised 
Target 

Objective: Ensure our services are readily available to all our residents in the appropriate channels and provided 'right first time'

Number of twitter followers Quarterly
4050 4387 4400 4500

Number of Facebook followers Quarterly
1600 2771 2200 2800

No./% of interactions:
    a) phone b) face to face c) web

Monthly a) 37% 
b) 23%
 c) 40% 

a) 67171   41%  
b) 38059   23%
c) 58411   36%
2019-20
a)   9196      44%
b)         0        0%
c)   11923    56%
May 2020

a)39%  
b) 24% 
c)37% 

Refocus the PI:  
a) % of assisted contact 
(phones and face to face )
b) % of web 
TARGETS
a) 61%
b) 39%
 

Avoidable contact (number taken from 
customer portal) 

Annual 12% Not available 12% 15%

Objective: More effective use of Council assets to benefit our communities

% of rent lost due to vacant stock Monthly 0.86% 0.85% 2019-20
0.62% May 20 

0.86% 1.03%

Average time taken to re-let Council homes Monthly 25 days 28.6
 2019-20

40.3 May 2020

25 days 30 days

 % properties with nil void loss Annual 15% 19.7% 15% 0%

% and number of council owned business 
units occupied

Annual 86% (25/29) 85%
(22/26)

89.6%
(26/29)

19/26 (73%)

Objective: Use innovation, technology and partnerships with others to help improve the efficiency of services, improve customer 
satisfaction and reduce our impact on the environment

NEW: Number of Onevu (customer portal) 
accounts

Quarterly NEW NEW 28,000 27,000

P
age 93



Covid 19 target review 

Aim 3: Protect and create jobs by supporting economic growth, development and regeneration
Measure Reported 2019-20 

Target
2019-20 
Result

2020-21 
Target

Revised 
Target 

Objective: High quality development and building control with an ‘open for business’ approach

% of planning applications with pre-
application enquiries

Annual 10% 15% 10% 5%

Aim 4: Protect and improve the environment including responding to the climate emergency
Measure Reported 2019-20

 Target
2019-20
 Result

2020-21 
Target

Revised 
Target 

Objective: Effective Provision of quality parks and open spaces

Friends / Community Groups – no. of 
volunteer hours

Annual 750 1019 775 600

P
age 94



AGENDA ITEM: xxxx/XX 

HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Corporate Select Committee
28th September 2020

Appendices Attached 

 APPENDIX 1 Changes to the current planning system implications and 
comments summary table.

1.        Reason for the Report:

1.1. To appraise the Committee of proposed changes to the current planning 
system as set out in the Government’s Consultation Document published on 6 
August 2020.

2. Recommendation

2.1    That the Committee notes the contents of the report and provides comments 
for inclusion within the Council’s response to the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities & Local Government before the end of the consultation period on 
1st October 2020.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The consultation “Changes to the Current Planning System” sets out 
proposals for measures to improve the effectiveness of the current planning 
system. 
The 4 main proposals are:

TITLE: Proposed changes to the current planning 
system consultation 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor A. McKeown – Lead of the Council

OFFICER: Ben Haywood – Head of Development 
Services

WARDS: Whole Borough 

Page 95

Agenda Item 8



 changes to the standard method for assessing local housing need
 securing of First Homes through developer contributions in the short term 

until the transition to a new system
 supporting small and medium-sized builders by temporarily lifting the small 

sites threshold below which developers do not need to contribute to 
affordable housing

 extending the current Permission in Principle to major development

3.2 The proposed changes to the current planning system will update the standard 
methodology for assessing housing requirements. Consideration of the size of 
existing housing stock and the long term affordability over the past ten years 
will now be considered in determining needs. This has the effect of increasing 
housing needs in areas with an existing large stock and/or affordability issues. 
Plans for new “First Homes” are also proposed alongside increasing the 
threshold for affordable housing contributions. This will result in fewer 
affordable homes being developed in the Borough that meet the needs as 
assessed in our Strategic Housing Market Assessment. 

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The Council’s Corporate Plan identifies that our key priorities include “High 
quality development and building control with an “open for business 
approach””

5. Analysis and Summary of Changes

5.1 This consultation sets out proposals for measures to improve the effectiveness 
of the current planning system. The 4 main proposals are:

 changes to the standard method for assessing local housing need
 securing of First Homes through developer contributions in the short term until 

the transition to a new system
 supporting small and medium-sized builders by temporarily lifting the small 

sites threshold below which developers do not need to contribute to affordable 
housing

 extending the current Permission in Principle to major development

6. Implications

6.1 The proposed changes to the current planning system will update the standard 
methodology for assessing housing requirements. Consideration of the size of 
existing housing stock and the long term affordability over the past ten years 
will now be considered in determining needs. This has the effect of increasing 
housing needs in areas with an existing large stock and/or affordability issues. 
Plans for new “First Homes” are also proposed alongside increasing the 
threshold for affordable housing contributions. This will result in fewer 
affordable homes being developed in the district that meet the needs as 
assessed in our Strategic Housing Market Assessment. 

6.2 A full analysis of the implications of the changes is provided in the Table at 
Appendix 1.

Page 96



Neil Rodgers – Executive Director (Place)

Contact Details
Mark James
Principal Planning 
Officer
Mark.james@highpe
ak.gov.uk

07976 753404

Ben Haywood
Head of Development 
Services
Ben.haywood@highpeak.gov.
uk

01538 394500 ext 4924

Page 97

mailto:Mark.james@highpeak.gov.uk
mailto:Mark.james@highpeak.gov.uk
mailto:Ben.haywood@highpeak.gov.uk
mailto:Ben.haywood@highpeak.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Changes to the current planning system – summary of proposals and possible implications

Summary of proposal Possible implications
The standard methodology for assessing housing numbers in strategic plans
New method to ensure delivery of 300,000 homes per year (140,000 more 
than in Local Plans currently).

Achieve a better distribution of homes where homes are identified in more 
high-demand areas and in emerging demand areas across the country 
(such as the Northern Powerhouse).

Application of the most up to date data. The size of existing housing stock 
and affordability over the past 10 years are now to be considered

Current method               Proposed method

Using existing stock in the calculation is proposed to “ensure that all areas, 
as a minimum, are contributing a share of the national total, proportionate 
to the size of their current housing market.” However, this approach 
assumes that areas can continue to grow at a rate proportionate to their 
existing stock – this may not always be possible, particularly in areas 
constrained by topography, national parks etc.  This is a concern.

However, unlike the White Paper proposals, this approach would still 
enable local authorities to seek to deliver lower housing numbers through 
local plans where justified.1. The methodology provides the starting point 
for setting plan requirements. The current NPPF requires the local housing 
need to be met as a minimum unless policies in the NPPF provides “a 
strong reason” to restrict growth or if the adverse impacts of doing so 
would “significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits”, when 
assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole.

Consideration of the affordability of housing over a 10 year period is likely 
to provide a better indication of the issue and allow the housing need to 
reflect whether affordability is worsening or improving. However, this 
approach is predicated on the view that increasing housing supply will 
improve affordability. There is little evidence of this locally. 

The removal of the cap in the increase of housing required is a significant 
concern as this previously avoided the risk to significant increases in the 
local housing need.

The estimated impact of the new methodology is set out below.

1 The White Paper would take the housing need calculated using the new standard methodology and then factor in constraints to set a binding requirement.

P
age 99



The Government is concerned that the current method provides “volatile” 
results and projects forward past trends which may reflect under-provision. 
The consideration of existing stock is considered to help address these 
issues. 

“Using stock will ensure that all areas, as a minimum, are contributing a 
share of the national total, proportionate to the size of their current 
housing market”

Transitional arrangements are proposed to take account of the impact on 
local plans that are being prepared. Councils that have plans at the formal 
publication stage have 6 months to submit to the SoS using the current 
figures. Plans close to the publication stage have 3 months to publish and 
then 6 months to submit from the date that the new methodology is 
introduced. 

Local Plan 
requirement

Average 
delivery (last 3 
years)

Current 
standard 
method

New standard 
method

350 405 263 420

The new methodology would increase the housing requirement in High 
Peak by 70 homes per year when compared to the Local Plan and 157 
homes per year in comparison to the current standard method. Please note 
that the Local Plan housing requirement is based on the 2012 NPPF and so 
pre-dates the current standard method. The next Local Plan review will 
need to take which ever methodology for assessing housing requirements 
is in place at the time. 

Unless the Council is able to make the case for a lower housing 
requirement, the new methodology will increase the risk that otherwise 
unsuitable sites will need to be released for housing. 

In the shorter term, the new methodology will increase the risk that the 
Council will fail the annual Housing Delivery Test in the future. The test 
measures the average delivery of housing over the past 3 years against the 
housing required. To date the test has been passed in High Peak. However, 
when the housing requirement as set out in the Local Plan is more than 5 
years old, unless, the plan has been reviewed and considered to be up to 
date, the standard method local housing need figure would apply2. If the 
Council delivers less than 75% of the requirement, its housing policies will 
be considered out of date and the “tilted balance” will apply when 
determining applications.

It is considered that the transitional arrangements should be expanded to 
apply to the Housing Delivery Test as well as local plan preparation. As it 

2 The High Peak Local Plan was adopted in April 2016 and will cross this threshold on 15 April 2021.

P
age 100



stands, it would appear that the higher housing requirement would in 
effect apply retrospectively as the test measures housing growth over the 
past 3 years. It is not reasonable to measure performance against a new 
benchmark that did not exist at the time. A more sensible approach would 
be to only begin to apply the new housing requirement from the year that 
it is introduced. 

Delivering First Homes and supporting small/medium developers
A minimum of 25 per cent of all affordable housing units secured through 
developer contributions should be First Homes3. This will be a national 
threshold. 

On site delivery unless an off-site financial contribution in lieu and be 
justified 

Initially secured through S106, but in the future through the new 
Infrastructure Levy as set out in the White Paper. 

Planning application should seek to capture the same amount of value as 
would be captured under the local authority’s up-to-date published policy. 
For any remaining affordable housing that is viable (and required) under 
local policy after provision for First Homes, there are 2 options:

1. Follow local policy
2. Negotiate a tenure mix for remaining 75% of units

First Homes exception sites policy to be introduced to allow small sites 
outside of the local plan to be brought forward. 

A higher discount from the market rate of the standard First Homes 
requirement (30%) can be set by councils if evidenced through local plans 
(40-50%).

This would reduce the amount of traditional affordable rent or shared 
ownership homes delivered through  registered providers. This runs 
counter to the identified housing needs identified in the SHMA and Local 
Plan (30% social rent, 50% affordable rent and 20% intermediate housing)

Potentially this could mean we would no longer be able to deliver any 
shared ownership housing through planning gain. The government are 
prioritising home ownership over the traditional types of affordable 
housing such as rent and shared ownership which generally meets the 
needs of lower income or benefit dependent households. 

The potential for the local plan to set an even higher discount than the 
standard First Homes rate (30%) may further undermine the viability of 
development to support the wider affordable housing needs of the SHMA.

Increasing the site threshold to 40 or 50 dwellings would significantly 
reduce the number of sites where an affordable housing contribution 
would be taken, even if only for a temporary period. This would impact 
considerably on the delivery of affordable housing in some of our rural 
communities where larger sites would be unacceptable. 

3 First Homes will be homes sold with at least a 30% discount to local first time buyers, key workers and the armed forces (serving or retired). The discount would be passed 
on to future buyers.

P
age 101



Transitional arrangements for the introduction of First Homes are 
proposed. The tenure mix for local plans policies may need to be reviewed. 
If this is the case, this will need to be done as part of a local plan review. 
However, the need should be reduced by prioritising the replacement of 
home-ownership tenures with First Homes. Recognition will also be given 
to developers who have made significant progress in seeking agreement on 
the affordable housing mix of emerging schemes. 

Increased thresholds for affordable housing contributions to a minimum of 
40 or 50 dwellings for an initial period of 18 months to allow the impact of 
the change to be monitored. 

Extension of the Permission in Principle consent regime
Permission in Principle (PiP) was introduced in 2017 to establish a faster 
means of approving the principle of development on brownfield sites or for 
schemes of less than 10 homes. A 2nd “technical details” consent is 
required prior to development. 

The separate proposals in the White paper seek to establish PiP for large 
sites identified in the Local Plans for growth. However, as shorter term 
measures, the following changes are proposed under the current planning 
system.

The regulations would be amended to allow PiP to be granted for major 
developments to help reduce up front costs for small/medium sized 
developers looking to develop schemes of 10 to 150 homes (less than 5ha). 
Development which requires EiA or which are likely to have a significant 
effect on a site protected by the Conservation of Species and Habitats 
Regulations 2017 would not be eligible for PiP.

PiP would also be an option to approve other uses such as retail, office 

There has been little interest in PiP to date. Increasing the thresholds may 
encourage further applications through PiP but it is questionable whether 
this approval process makes any meaningful difference to supporting 
growth.

A 14 day consultation period for major developments does not seem 
sufficient and may result in vital feedback from statutory consultees not 
being available within the  5 week determination period. 

Furthermore, it is questionable whether sufficient information will be 
provided in support of PiP applications for major developments which are 
more likely to have complex issues to resolve. There is a risk that the 
impacts of major schemes are missed at the PiP stage which may lead to a 
higher proportion of refusals at the technical details consent stage as the 
full implications of development become apparent. This would not give the 
developers the certainty that the Government seeks to achieve. 

In this regard, the suggestion that maximum building heights could be set 

P
age 102



space or community uses provided that it is compatible with housing and 
that housing is the predominant use. The current 1000m2 (or 1ha) 
threshold for commercial development would be removed.

5-week determination period and the 14-day period for consultation with 
the public and statutory consultees.

As currently, only the following information is required to be submitted 
with a PiP application. This would also apply to major development:
a description of the proposed development,
• the proposed minimum and maximum number of dwellings,
• the amount of any non-residential development,
• the size of the site in hectares, and
• a brief description of any supporting information that is accompanying 
the application.

Views are sought on whether building height should be agreed at the PiP 
stage. 

Amended the publicity requirements for PiP applications on large sites so 
that they are subject to publicity beyond just a site notice and website 
publication. Flexibility to use social media to publicize applications (as is 
currently the case on a temporary basis) is mooted. 

at the PiP stage is welcome but the extent of control at this point should go 
further.

Greater publicity for PiP applications for major developments will be 
essential in order to enable communities to engage. Wider use of publicity 
methods such as social media is a welcome proposal alongside the use of 
wider methods. 

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 CORPORATE
Chairman: Councillor Ashton

Vice Chairman: Stone
Councillor Lead Officer: A Stokes

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration

Fourth Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance 
Review 2019/20

C Hazeldene / 
V Higgins

COVID-19 Pandemic – Recovery – Reinstating Services, 
Financial Recovery and Positive Legacy

A Patterson/C 
Hazeldene/T 
Cooper

Financial Planning Process C Hazeldene
Select Committee Work Programme

13-Jul-20

First Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance 
Review  2020/2021

C Hazeldene / 
V Higgins

MTFP Update C Hazledene
Revised Performance Framework due to Covid V Higgins
Planning System Consultation B Haywood
Select Committee Work Programme

28-Sep-20

Medium Term Financial Plan Update A Stokes
Second Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance 
Review  2020/2021

C Hazeldene / 
V Higgins

Select Committee Work Programme

Nov-20

Third Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance 
Review  2019/2020

C Hazeldene / 
V Higgins

Feb-21

Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21  A Stokes

P
age 105

A
genda Item

 9



 CORPORATE
Select Committee Work Programme
Customer Services Update K Lomas
Select Committee Work Programme

Apr-21

Appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman 
Performance Framework 2021/22 and Annual Report 
2020/21

V Higgins

Select Committee Work Programme

June-21

Advertising/Sponsorship Policy
Transfer of Building Control B Haywood
Facilities Management contract option appraisal (Part 2) K Webster
Review of Call Centre Operation K Lomas/M 

Walker
Peer Review
Courts and Tribunal Service T Calleia

To add in

P
age 106



COMMUNITY
Chairman: Councillor Quinn

Vice Chairman: Councillor Sizeland
Lead Officer: M Trillo

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration

COVID-19 Pandemic – Community Recovery Mark Forrester
Blue Lagoon - Hoffman Quarry - Exempt Mark Trillo
Work Programme

20-July-20

Update on HMOs Mike Towers
Air Quality Management Alicia Patterson
Dog Fouling Strategy Update David Smith
Work Programme

23-Sept-20

Update Connex Community Support (formerly known as 
Buxton & Derbyshire Dales Volunteer Bureau)

Gill Geddes Presentation

AES Annual Performance Review AES
Wildfire Public Spaces Protection Order David Smith
Work Programme

Nov-20

Derbyshire Police Update - tbc
Work Programme

Feb-21

P
age 107



COMMUNITY

Work Programme
Mar-21

Appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman
Update on Air Quality Management Alicia Patterson
Work Programme

Jun-21

Update from NWAS
Update from Derbyshire Fire Service
Update from Police & Crime Commissioner
High Peak Place NHS Derby and Derbyshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group

Amy Busby

Update Connex Community Support (formerly known as 
Buxton & Derbyshire Dales Volunteer Bureau)

Gill Geddes 

Environment Agency (flooding)

To add in

ECONOMY AND GROWTH 
Chairman: Councillor Siddall

Vice Chairman: Councillor Grooby
Lead Officer: Neil Rodgers

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration

COVID-19 Pandemic – Economic Recovery S Porru/C Hazeldene
Fairfield Roundabout Update
Work Programme

29-July-20

Sept-20 Work Programme

P
age 108



18 September 2020

ECONOMY AND GROWTH 
HIF Programme and Fairfield Roundabout Update
LAAC programme update  - Granby Road B: (Progress on 
lease / legal agreements with development partner)
Buxton Neighbourhood Plan TBC M James
Water in Buxton SPD TBC M James

Work Programme
Nov-20

Work Programme
Feb-21

Work Programme
Mar-21

Appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman
Work Programme

June-21

Feedback on Future High Street bid
Recovery Programme
Report from Transport Working Group
Transpennine Upgrade
High Peak Local Plan Review  
Fairfield Road Update
Visit Peak District
Buxton Neighbourhood Forum M James

To add in

Lidl Glossop

P
age 109



18 September 2020

ECONOMY AND GROWTH 
Old Nestle Buxton Site
Shop Units in High Peak and vacancy rates
Council website – tourism (hotels, events and social 
media)
Industrial Units – capacity, vacancy rates, brownfield sites

P
age 110


	Agenda
	4 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 First Quarter Performance, Procurement and Finanical Reivew 2020/21
	Appendix A for First Quarter Performance, Procurement and Finanical Reivew 2020/21
	Appendix B for First Quarter Performance, Procurement and Finanical Reivew 2020/21
	Appendix C for First Quarter Performance, Procurement and Finanical Reivew 2020/21

	6 Medium Term Financial Plan
	7 Revised Performance Framework
	Appendix 1 for Revised Performance Framework

	8 Current Planning System Consultation
	Appendiz

	9 Select Committee Work Programme

